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Government solutions
Kforce Government Solutions (KGS) is a government contracting services provider that has 

offered a comprehensive portfolio of solutions to a wide range of Federal and Defense 
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To our Fellow ShareholderS, ClienTS and employeeS:

We are very pleased with full-year 2011 results. Kforce 
reported revenue for the year ended December 31, 2011 of 
$1.1 billion, an increase of 12.1%. We are very proud to have 

crossed the one billion dollar revenue threshold. Net income was 
$27.2 million, which represents a year-over-year increase of 31.6% 
and EPS was $0.70, a 37.3% increase. Total technology revenue 
of $624 million and technology flex of $606.2 million represent 
historical high watermarks for that business unit. We are optimistic 
about the Firm’s prospects in what, we believe, continues to be 
a secular shift towards a greater use of flexible staffing, in an 
environment of high demand for skilled professionals. 

Looking back on 2011, we believe that staffing industry 
performance has been significantly different than in previous 
economic cycles, further supporting the ongoing shift to a more 
variable workforce. The unemployment rate among college-
educated workers is currently 4.2%, about half of the overall U.S. 
rate of unemployment, and, is substantially lower in several of the 
skill sets Kforce specializes in, particularly in technology. Our revenue 
footprint and domestic platform are focused in some of the areas of 
greatest demand in today’s knowledge-based economy. We foresee 
continued benefits to our clients utilizing a more flexible workforce 
during this tempered non-traditional economic recovery, along with 
clients still facing significant uncertainty of regulatory, tax and 
healthcare reform. All of this bodes well for the future of our Firm.

The objectives we established for 2011 were to further penetrate 
existing strategic accounts, capture additional client share and 
selectively target new accounts where our service offerings and 
business model add value to our clients. Our Strategic Accounts 
program, supported by the National Recruiting Center (NRC), has 
continued its steady growth. At the same time, the growing needs 
for flexible staffing at small and medium-size customers, particularly 
in the second half of 2011, have allowed us to sequentially improve 
the bill/pay spreads in our technology flex business more typical of 
what we have seen in past, more traditional economic recoveries.

We believe the uncertain economic outlook in 2011 negatively 
impacted the valuation of Kforce and other staffing stocks 
disproportionately as many questioned the depth and sustainability 
of the recovery, particularly against the backdrop of the still 
unfolding Eurozone crisis. This led to significant price swings both for 
Kforce and the staffing sector as a whole. The Firm was aggressive 
in response to market fluctuations and was able to repurchase 5.7 
million shares of stock during the year, which represented 13.8% of 
outstanding shares. 

We are pleased with the successful completion of the final year 
of our three-year strategic plan, the Triple Crown in 2011, and are 
excited to embark upon The Expedition, our next 3-year plan. Our 
foundation of great people, processes and tools, combined with 
our flexible NRC and Strategic Accounts model, and our tenured 
leadership and sales teams, drove record high total Firm revenues in 

excess of $1.1 billion dollars in 2011, and achieved revenue records 
in Tech and HIM flex business units.

Looking forward to 2012, we remain committed in our belief that 
temporary staffing penetration, which has improved from 1.34% at 
the beginning of this economic cycle and is currently 1.87% of the 
workforce, may achieve historic highs in the U.S. during this tempered 
economic expansion. We believe the strengthening demand for our 
services, as a result of this trend, will only be enhanced if economic 
growth accelerates. Our strategy remains intact as we believe there 
remains significant opportunity for continued market share capture. 

We expect 2012 to be a strong year overall for the Firm and remain 
excited about our prospects. Overall, the demand for our services 
continues to improve and we expect continued revenue growth. 
We also expect gross margin and operating margin improvement 
in 2012, though overall improvements will be negatively impacted 
by increasing payroll tax related costs as states continue to raise 
unemployment insurance rates and wage bases in an effort to 
replenish their depleted unemployment funds. Given the harsh 
realities of many states’ balance sheets, we would expect this trend 
to continue for the foreseeable future. 

We also now have more than a full year of data and visibility into 
our Key Performance Indicators through the Firm’s new reporting 
vehicle, AMP! (Actions Maximizing Performance). This tool, 
internally developed by Kforce, provides a real-time dashboard into 
our associates’ activity levels, that is invaluable to us in managing 
and incentivizing our teams to achieve success.

Looking at our business by service line: Tech flex is our largest 
business unit and represents approximately 55% of total Firm 
revenues. Tech flex revenues increased 13.1% Q4 of 2011 over Q4 of 
2010 and increased 16.1% for the year 2011 over 2010. The candidate 
pool for technology consultants in particular is very tight. Maintaining 
a pipeline and finding candidates through passive recruiting and 
social media is a necessity. We look to continue demand for our Tech 
flex business with the goal of further taking market share. 

Revenues for our Finance and Accounting flex business, which 
represent approximately 20% of our total revenues, increased 17.3% 
for the year 2011 over 2010. While we saw a decline in activity in lower 
bill rate positions, inclusive of the mortgage-related assignments, 
which constitutes approximately 17% of our FA business and was 
very strong last year, overall demand for our core FA business remains 
intact. We would expect the mortgage portion to continue to 
experience volatility in this area based upon changes in the housing 
and mortgage market. Taken as a whole, our FA unit continues to 
perform well, and we see opportunity to take market share. 

Revenues for our HIM business increased 19% for the year 2011 
over 2010. Our HIM flex revenues were at record levels and revenue 
trends continue to be promising as hospital spend continues to 
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improve, particularly in the project services and remote coding 
areas. This business has grown more quickly than all of our other 
businesses over the past year and has now experienced seven 
straight quarters of growth. We believe in the long-term demand 
for this profitable business and in particular, opportunities that 
are evolving for both HIM and Tech flex with clients transitioning 
to electronic medical records and with the pending mandated 
adoption of ICD-10. While there is an increasing likelihood of an 
extension of the original November 2013 mandated deadline for 
the implementation of ICD-10, we remain very positive on our 
outlook for this business.

Revenues for Kforce Government Solutions decreased 0.2% Q4 of 
2011 over Q4 of 2010. We believe we have made significant progress 
in repositioning this profitable unit for success. Government 
contractors continue to see the negative impacts of the challenging 
federal procurement environment and funding cuts. As a result, 
revenue visibility remains limited though we believe with our diverse 
and quality sales pipeline, we may take market share in this project-
based business. However, negative revenue profitability trends in 
this business could result in a non-cash impairment charge on this 
unit’s intangible assets. 

Perm revenues increased 13.1% in 2011 over 2010. We continue 
to make measured investments in our Field and NRC Search teams 
to support this revenue stream. 

During 2011, due to the significant demand for its resources driven 
by large increases in job order flow, a key focus of the NRC was on 
enhancing and refining its assignment prioritization processes and 
tools. We have already seen positive results on this front. Currently, 
approximately 30% of Technology and F&A revenue is being supported 
by the NRC. Our field teams that highly leverage the NRC and the 
related processes and tools are deriving real benefits and experiencing 
higher fill rates. We expect continued process improvements in 2012 
and should also see the benefits of increasing tenure within the NRC 
as 55% of the team has now been with the Firm for greater than one 
year. Though the Firm is already realizing significant benefits from the 
NRC, we expect continued improvement in 2012 and future years.

The Firm provides consultants to approximately 3,000 clients at 
any time. We have an extremely diversified revenue stream, with no 
individual client constituting more than 3.5% of total revenues. Our 
flexible model allows us to redeploy consultants in the industries 
with the greatest demand for our services such as healthcare. Core 
headcount increased 10.8% year over year. We expect to continue to 
make selective investments in our sales associate headcount as we 
achieve certain performance metrics. Revenue per employee is now 
2.7% higher than a year ago.

Subsequent to the end of our fiscal year, on March 30, 2012, 
we completed the sale of our Clinical Research business for $50 
million. We did so after an extensive review of our business and of 
the changing landscape in the pharmaceutical industry. We believe 
selling our Clinical Research business will reduce our operational 
complexities and help us concentrate on our core service offerings. 
We believe strong demand in our Tech, FA and HIM businesses 
should allow us to replace the lost revenue from our Clinical 
Research business over the next 12 months. We intend to use the 
net proceeds from the sale to reduce outstanding debt.  

We performed well in 2011 and are poised for success as we 
embark on our new three-year strategic plan. We believe our 
diversified service offerings, fortified by our tenured field teams and 
our National Recruiting Center and Strategic Account Executives, 
will result in continued revenue growth as we move further 
through this economic recovery. In addition, 2012 marks the year 
we proudly celebrate the 50th anniversary of our founding in 1962. 
While the pace of change today is unprecedented, we remain 
committed to the Firm’s core mission and values. As we embark 
on our expedition to “Attack the Summit” during the next three 
years, our priorities are a continuing relentless focus on retaining 
our great people and improving client satisfaction, while driving 
continued profitable revenue growth. We appreciate your interest 
in and support for Kforce. Thanks to each and every member of 
our field and corporate teams, and to our shareholders, clients and 
consultants for allowing us the privilege of serving you. 

David L. Dunkel William L. Sanders 
Chairman and  President 
Chief Executive Officer



 The information set forth below is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations and should be read in conjunction with 
Kforce’s Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes thereto incorporated into this Annual Report, hereinafter collectively 
referred to as “Consolidated Financial Statements.”

Years Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009 2008 (1) 2007

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Net service revenues $1,110,919 $990,807 $910,136 $997,017 $972,781
Gross profit 346,303 312,414 285,979 344,651 352,023
Selling, general and administrative expenses 288,981 265,183 251,268 415,884 272,335
Depreciation and amortization 12,694 12,611 11,673 13,824 14,487
Other expense, net 1,317 1,296 1,145 2,136 4,422

Income (loss) from continuing operations,  
 before income taxes 43,311 33,324 21,893 (87,193) 60,779
Provision for income taxes 16,155 12,690 9,020 1,928 23,856

Income (loss) from continuing operations 27,156 20,634 12,873 (89,121) 36,923
Income from discontinued operations,  
 net of income taxes —   —   —   5,013 3,444

Net income (loss) $      27,156 $   20,634 $   12,873 $ (84,108) $   40,367

Earnings (loss) per share–basic,  
 continuing operations $0.72 $0.52 $0.33 $(2.26) $0.90

Earnings (loss) per share–diluted,  
 continuing operations $0.70 $0.51 $0.33 $(2.26) $0.87

Earnings (loss) per share–basic $0.72 $0.52 $0.33 $(2.13) $0.98

Earnings (loss) per share–diluted $0.70 $0.51 $0.33 $(2.13) $0.95

Weighted average shares outstanding–basic 37,835 39,480 38,485 39,471 41,308
Weighted average shares outstanding–diluted 38,831 40,503 39,330 39,471 42,294

As of December 31, 2011 2010 2009 2008 (1) 2007

(In thousands)

Working capital $    103,075 $   64,878 $  57,924 $  60,302 $   95,348
Total assets $    409,672 $391,044 $339,825 $350,815 $476,136
Total outstanding borrowings–Credit Facility $       49,526 $   10,825 $     3,000 $  38,022 $  50,330
Total long-term liabilities $       93,393 $ 36,904 $   33,887 $  59,528 $  78,102
Stockholders’ equity $    233,115 $253,817 $226,725 $205,843 $312,468

(1)  Kforce recognized a goodwill and intangible asset impairment charge of $129.4 million during 2008. The tax benefit associated with this impairment charge was $14.2 million, 
resulting in an after-tax impairment charge of $115.2 million.

 The acquisition of dNovus was made during the three months ended December 31, 2008. The results of operations for this acquisition have 
been included in our Consolidated Financial Statements since the acquisition date. During the three months ended June 30, 2008, Kforce 
sold its Scientific and per-diem Nursing business and completed efforts to wind down the remaining operations of its non per-diem Nursing 
business. As a result, the results of operations of Scientific and Nursing have been presented as discontinued operations for the years ended 
December 31, 2008 and 2007. 
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SToCk priCe perFormanCe

 The following graph is a comparison of the cumulative total returns for Kforce common stock as compared with the cumulative total return 
for the NASDAQ Stock Market (U.S.) Index and the average performance of our 2011 Industry Peer Group (as listed below). Kforce’s cumulative 
return was computed by dividing the difference between the price of Kforce common stock at the end of each year and the beginning of the 
measurement period (December 31, 2006 to December 31, 2011) by the price of Kforce common stock at the beginning of the measurement 
period. Cumulative total return for the peer group companies and the NASDAQ include dividends in the calculation of total return and are 
based upon an assumed $100 investment on December 31, 2006, with all returns weighted based on market capitalization at the end of each 
discrete measurement period. The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible 
future performance of Kforce’s common stock. For purposes of the stock price performance graph below, Kforce has been excluded from the 
industry peer group.

Investment of $100 on December 31, 2006 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Kforce Inc. 100.0 80.1 63.1 102.7 132.9 101.3
NASDAQ Stock Market (Composite) 100.0 109.8 65.3 93.9 109.8 107.9
Industry Peer Group 100.0 70.9 50.5 63.1 73.2 64.1 

2011 industry peer Group:
AMN Healthcare Services Inc Resources Connection, Inc.
CDI Corporation Robert Half International Inc.
Ciber, Inc. SFN Group, Inc.
Kelly Services, Inc. Volt Information Sciences, Inc. 
On Assignment, Inc.

 The industry peer group is one of the building blocks of executive compensation evaluation by providing our Compensation Committee 
fact-based data and providing insight into external compensation practices. The industry peer group provides information about pay 
magnitude, pay practices and performance comparison. The primary criteria for peer group selection include peer company customers,  
revenue footprint, geographical presence, talent, capital, size, complexity of operating model and annual revenues.
 There was no change in the industry peer group between 2010 and 2011. For purposes of calculating the 2011 Industry Peer Group stock 
price performance for 2011, SFN Group, Inc. was removed as it was acquired during September 2011 by Ranstad Holding nv.
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markeT For reGiSTranT’S Common equiTy, relaTed SToCkholder maTTerS and 
iSSuer purChaSeS oF equiTy SeCuriTieS

market information
Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol “KFRC.” The following table sets forth, for the periods 

indicated, the high and low intra-day sales price of our common stock, as reported on the NASDAQ Global Select Market. These prices represent 
inter-dealer quotations without retail markups, markdowns or commissions, and may not represent actual transactions.

 Three Months Ended March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

 2011
  High $19.23 $18.56 $15.04 $14.11
  Low  $15.86 $12.14 $   8.12 $   9.42

 2010
  High $16.04 $16.25 $14.51 $17.10
  Low  $12.32 $11.92 $   9.80 $13.04

From January 1, 2012 through March 6, 2012, the high and low intra-day sales price of our common stock was $14.56 and $12.01, respectively. 
On March 6, 2012, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Select Market was $14.03 per share. 

holders of Common Stock 
On March 6, 2012, there were approximately 196 holders of record. 

dividends 
Since the initial public offering in 1995, Kforce has not paid any cash dividends on its common stock and has no current intention to do so. 

Kforce is not restricted under its Credit Facility from paying dividends. 

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

In addition to the risks inherent in its operations, Kforce is exposed to certain market risks, primarily changes in interest rates. The sensitivity 
analysis presented below for our Credit Facility is based on a 10% change in interest rates. This change is a hypothetical scenario and is used to 
calibrate potential risk and does not represent our view of future market changes. 

As of December 31, 2011, we had $49.5 million outstanding under our Credit Facility. Our weighted average effective interest rate on our 
Credit Facility was 1.80% at December 31, 2011. A hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates in effect at December 31, 2011 would have the 
effect of increasing annualized interest expense on borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2011 by $0.1 million. 

We do not believe that we have a material exposure to fluctuations in foreign currencies because our international operations represented 
approximately 2% of net service revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011, and because our international operations’ functional currency 
is the U.S. Dollar. However, Kforce will continue to assess the impact which currency fluctuations could have on our operations going forward. 



 
BuSineSS overview

Company overview 
We are a national provider of professional and technical specialty staffing 

services and solutions and operate through our corporate headquarters in 
Tampa, Florida as well as our 62 field offices, which are located throughout 
the United States, and an office in Manila, Philippines. Kforce, a Florida 
corporation, was incorporated in 1994 but its predecessor companies, Source 
Services Corporation and Romac & Associates, Inc. have been providing 
staffing services since 1962. Kforce completed its Initial Public Offering in 
August 1995. 

We provide our clients staffing services and solutions through five 
operating segments: Technology (“Tech”), Finance and Accounting (“FA”), 
Clinical Research (“KCR”), Health Information Management (“HIM”) and 
Government Solutions (“GS”). Kforce organizes and manages its Tech 
and FA segments on a regional basis: Atlantic, North and West. Our Tech 
segment includes the results of Kforce Global Solutions, Inc. (“Global”), a 
wholly-owned subsidiary, which has an office in the Philippines. We believe 
this operational alignment supports a more customer-centric organization, 
leverages our best leaders, leverages client relationships across functional 
offerings, and streamlines the organization by placing senior management 
closer to the customer. Our KCR and HIM segments, which were aggregated 
in previous filings as Health and Life Sciences, are reported as separate 
operating segments for 2011 due to recent and then-projected economic 
dissimilarities including revenue and gross profit trends, operating 
environment, and business drivers. KCR, HIM and GS segments are organized 
and managed by specialty because of the unique operating characteristics 
of each business. 

The following charts depict the percentage of our total revenues for each 
of our segments for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Tech
We provide both temporary staffing and permanent placement services 

to our clients, focusing primarily on areas of information technology 
including, but not limited to, systems/applications programmers and 
developers, senior-level project managers, systems analysts, enterprise data 
management and e-business and networking technicians. The average bill 
rate for our Tech segment for 2011 was approximately $63.00 per hour. 
Our Tech segment provides service to clients in a variety of industries 
with a strong footprint in healthcare, financial services and government 
integrators. A recent report published by Staffing Industry Analysts (“SIA”) 
stated the ideal climate has been created for continued growth in the 
information technology staffing market resulting from a shortage of 
information technology workers with specialized skills and a demand for 
technical projects. The report anticipates that 2012 revenues generated 
from U.S. temporary staffing in the technology sector will surpass the prior 
peak set in 2000 during the height of the dot-com boom. The U.S. Bureau of 
Labor Statistics (“BLS”) lists computer systems design and related services 
among the fastest-growing industries reflecting the continuing demand for 
the high-level skills that are needed to keep up with changes in technology. 



the Federal Government will delay the required implementation date for the 
ICD-10 diagnostic and procedural coding system for an unspecified period 
of time. An announcement from the DHHS as to a new implementation 
date is pending. As with KCR, a substantial portion of the sales, account 
management and recruiting functions for the HIM segment is provided out 
of our corporate headquarters.
 
GS

The Federal Government is one of the largest consumers of information 
technology, spending approximately $79 billion in 2011 and budgeted to 
spend approximately $81 billion in 2012. Our GS segment provides Tech and 
FA professionals to the Federal Government, primarily as a prime contractor. 
GS also serves as a subcontractor to prime contractors, and we believe that 
our ability to source professional candidates for assignments, in combination 
with our prime contractor relationships, will allow us to pursue additional 
opportunities in this sector. GS offers integrated business solutions to its 
customers in areas such as: information technology, data and knowledge 
management, research and development, financial management and 
accounting, among other areas. Substantially all GS services are supplied to 
the Federal Government through field offices located in the Washington, 
D.C. and San Antonio, Texas areas. In 2011, GS began to offer its business 
solutions to the commercial sector in an effort to leverage existing skill sets 
within GS, thereby, diversifying its revenue stream. We believe the additional 
focus on the commercial sector will provide GS with the ability to better 
manage its risk and promote long-term growth of revenues. 

Types of Staffing Services
Kforce’s staffing services consist of temporary staffing services (“Flex”) 

and permanent placement services (“Search”). For the three years ended 
December 31, 2011, Search represented 4.0%, 4.0% and 3.1% of total Kforce 
revenue, respectively. 

Flex 
We provide our clients with qualified individuals (“consultants”) on 

a temporary basis when it is determined that the consultants have the 
appropriate skills and experience and are “the right match” for our clients. 
Our success is dependent upon our employees’ (“associates”) ability to: 
(1) understand and acknowledge the clients’ needs; (2) determine and 
understand the capabilities of the consultants being recruited; and (3) deliver 
and manage the client-consultant relationship to the satisfaction of both 
our clients and our consultants. Proper execution by our associates and our 
consultants directly impacts the longevity of the assignments and increases 
the likelihood of being able to generate repeat business with our clients. 

Flex revenues are driven by the number of total hours billed and established 
bill rates. Flex gross profit is determined by deducting consultant pay, benefits 
and other related costs from Flex revenues. Flex associate commissions, related 
taxes and other compensation and benefits as well as field management 
compensation are included in Selling, General and Administrative expenses 
(“SG&A”), along with administrative and corporate compensation. The Flex 
business model involves attempting to maximize the number of consultant 
hours and bill rates, while managing consultant pay rates and benefit costs, as 
well as compensation and benefits for our core associates. Flex revenues also 
include solutions provided through our GS segment. These revenues involve 
providing longer-term contract services to the customer primarily on time-
and-materials, fixed-price, and cost-plus bases. 

Search 
The Search business is a significantly smaller, yet important, part of 

our business that involves locating qualified individuals (“candidates”) for 
permanent placement with our clients. We primarily perform these searches 
on a contingency basis; thus, fees are only earned if the candidates are 
ultimately hired by our clients. The typical structure for search fees is based 

upon a percentage of the placed individual’s annual compensation in their 
first year of employment, which is known at the time of placement. We 
recruit permanent employees from our Flex consultant population, from 
the job boards, from our associates’ networks, social media networks and 
from passive candidates we identify who are currently employed and not 
actively seeking another position. Also, there are occasions where consultants 
are initially assigned to a client on a Flex basis and later are converted to a 
permanent placement, for which we also receive a Search fee (referred to as 
“conversion revenue”). We target clients and recruits for both Flex and Search 
services, which contributes to our objective of providing integrated solutions 
for all of our clients’ human capital needs. 

Search revenues are driven by placements made and the resulting fees 
billed and are recognized net of an allowance for “fallouts,” which occur 
when placements do not complete the applicable contingency period. 
Although the contingency period varies by contract, it is typically 90 days or 
less. This allowance for fallouts is estimated based upon historical experience 
with Search placements that did not complete the contingency period. There 
are no consultant payroll costs associated with Search placements, thus all 
Search revenues increase gross profit by a like amount. Search associate 
commissions, compensation and benefits are included in SG&A. 

Business Strategy 
The key elements of our business strategy include the following: 

Retain our Great People. A significant focus of Kforce is on the retention 
of our tenured and top performing associates. We ended fiscal 2011 with a 
highly tenured management team and field sales team, which we believe 
will continue to enhance our ability to achieve future profitable growth.

Continue to Develop and Optimize our NRC. We believe our centralized 
NRC offers us a competitive advantage and that the NRC is particularly 
effective at increasing the quality and speed of delivery services to our 
clients, specifically Strategic Accounts as well as other demands for high 
volume staffing. The NRC identifies and interviews active candidates from 
nationally contracted job boards, Kforce.com, as well as other sources, 
then forwards qualified candidates to Kforce field offices to be matched to 
available positions. The NRC primarily supports our Tech and FA segments 
but is also expanding its support of our KCR, HIM and GS segments. Due 
to the significant demand for its resources, the optimization of the NRC in 
2011 was a significant priority for the Firm, specifically its contribution to 
total Firm revenues through an intense focus on job order prioritization. A 
continuing focus will be on retention, training, ramping and development, 
which we expect will: (i) significantly enhance the performance of the NRC 
in meeting demand through additional contribution; (ii) enhance our efforts 
to support future growth and (iii) expand the NRC as our revenues increase. 

Focus on our Strategic Accounts. A focus of Kforce is in cultivating 
relationships with large clients, both in terms of annual revenues and 
geographic dispersion. For each of our Strategic Accounts, Kforce assigns a 
Strategic Account Executive who is responsible for managing all aspects of 
our client relationship.

Optimization of Flex Margins. As a result of the increases in statutory 
payroll taxes in recent years, particularly the Federal Unemployment Tax Act 
(“FUTA”) and the State Unemployment Tax Act (“SUTA”), we face increased 
challenges to maintain margins for consultants on assignment with both 
new and existing customers. We intend to address these challenges through 
the implementation of select bill rate increases as well as close management 
of consultant pay rates.

Encourage Employee Achievement. We focus on promoting and 
maintaining a quality-focused, results-oriented culture. Our field associates 
and corporate personnel are given incentives (which include competitions 
with significant prizes, incentive trips and internal recognition, in addition 
to bonuses) to encourage achievement of Kforce’s corporate goals and 
high levels of service. During 2010, we implemented and went live with 
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a business intelligence tool referred to as AMP!, which is an acronym for 
Actions Maximizing Performance, and expanded the platform in 2011 to 
include functionality for the NRC and SA teams. This metrics-based system 
has provided, and we expect will continue to provide, associates with current 
and historical performance measures relative to their Kforce peers, which 
we believe fuels healthy competition and assists associates in reaching their 
highest performance levels.

Focus on Value-Added Services. We focus on providing specialty staffing 
services and solutions to our clients. The placement of highly skilled 
personnel requires operational and technical skill to effectively recruit 
and evaluate personnel, match them to client needs, and manage the 
resulting relationships. We believe this strategy will serve to balance the 
desire for optimal volume, rate, effort and duration of assignment, while 
ultimately maximizing the benefit for our clients, consultants and the Firm. 
We concentrate resources among Tech, FA, KCR, HIM and GS to the areas 
of highest anticipated demand to adapt to the ever-changing landscape 
within the staffing industry. We believe our historical focus in these 
markets, combined with our staff’s operating expertise, provides us with a  
competitive advantage. 

Build Long-Term, Consultative Relationships. We believe we have 
developed long-term relationships with our clients by repeatedly providing 
solutions to their specialty staffing requirements. We strive to differentiate 
ourselves by working closely with our clients to understand their needs and 
maximize their return on human assets. In addition, Kforce’s ability to offer 
flexible staffing services, coupled with our permanent placement capability, 
offers the client a broad spectrum of specialty staffing services. We believe 
this ability enables Kforce to emphasize consultative rather than just 
transactional client relationships, and therefore facilitates the expansion of 
our share of our clients’ staffing needs. 

Achieve Extensive Client Penetration. Our client development process 
focuses on contacts with client employees responsible for staffing decisions. 
Contacts are made within functional departments and at different 
organizational levels within our client companies. Our associates are 
trained to develop a thorough understanding of each client’s total staffing 
requirements with a view to expand our share of our clients’ staffing needs. 

Recruit High-Quality Consultants. We place great emphasis on recruiting 
qualified consultants. We believe we have a recruiting advantage over our 
competitors who lack the ability to offer candidates flexible and permanent 
opportunities. We frequently place candidates seeking permanent 
employment in flexible assignments until a permanent position becomes 
available, as well as convert temporary candidates into permanent 
employees of our client companies. 

Leveraged Infrastructure. A significant focus for Kforce is the continuous 
advancement of its front-end and back office technology infrastructure 
to improve efficiency and maintain a leveraged platform. We believe our 
continuous enhancement of our back office system software provides a 
competitive advantage through the enhancement of the efficiency and 
performance of our sales and delivery functions. We continue to focus on 
the continual improvement of our front-end systems and our back office 
systems, including our time collection and billing systems.

industry overview 
We serve Fortune 1000 companies, the Federal Government, state and 

local governments, local and regional companies, and small to mid-sized 
companies. Our 10 largest clients represented 24.9% of revenues and no 
single customer accounted for more than 4.8% of revenues for the year 
ended December 31, 2011. The specialty staffing industry is made up of 
thousands of companies, most of which are small local firms providing 
limited service offerings to a relatively small local client base. We believe 
Kforce is one of the 10 largest publicly-traded specialty staffing firms in the 

United States. According to a recent report by SIA, 98 companies reported 
at least $100 million in U.S. staffing revenues in 2010. Competition in a 
particular market can come from many different companies, both large 
and small. We believe, however, that our geographic presence, diversified 
service offerings, centralized NRC, SA team, focus on consistent service 
and delivery and effective job order prioritization, all provide a competitive 
advantage, particularly with clients that have operations in multiple 
geographic markets. In addition, we believe that our diversified portfolio of 
service offerings is primarily concentrated in areas with significant growth 
opportunities in both the short and long term.

Based upon previous economic cycles experienced by Kforce, we believe 
that times of sustained economic recovery generally stimulate demand for 
substantial additional U.S. workers and, conversely, an economic slowdown 
results in a contraction in demand for additional U.S. workers. We also 
believe that Flex demand generally increases before demand for permanent 
placements increases given that companies tend to prefer a flexible staffing 
model in the early stages of an economic recovery to ensure its sustainability. 
From an economic standpoint, temporary employment figures and 
trends are important indicators of staffing demand, which increased in 
2011. The penetration rate (the percentage of temporary staffing to total 
employment), increased slightly in 2011 after growing significantly in 2010. 
While we believe the macro-employment picture continues to be relatively 
weak with the unemployment rate at 8.5% as of December 2011, non-farm 
payroll expanded by 200,000 jobs in December 2011. Additionally, non-
farm payroll growth remained positive for 15 consecutive months through 
December 2011. If the penetration rate of temporary staffing experiences 
growth in the coming years, which is anticipated by some economists and 
analysts, we believe that our Flex revenues can grow significantly even in 
a relatively modest growth macro-economic environment. Management 
remains cautiously optimistic about the growth prospects of the temporary 
staffing industry, the penetration rate and in particular our revenue portfolio. 

According to an industry report, the United States temporary staffing 
industry generated estimated revenues of $94.5 billion in 2008, $71.2 billion 
in 2009 and $80.0 billion in 2010; with projected revenues of $87.8 billion 
in 2011 and $93.8 billion in 2012. Of course, no reliable predictions can 
be made about the general economy, the staffing industry as a whole, or 
specialty staffing in particular. 

Although the results of operations in the GS segment were anticipated 
to have better long-term growth stability during variable economic cycles, 
we believe our GS segment was significantly impacted in 2011 by the 
political landscape, including the U.S. Congress’s inability to pass the 2011 
U.S. federal budget and its continuing to operate under a series of seven 
continuing resolutions thereby continuing funding at or less than 75% 
of 2010 levels, and the macro-economic environment. The GS segment 
has been adversely impacted by delays in the timing of project awards, 
uncertainty about the funding levels of various programs and agencies 
within the Federal Government. Additionally, the Continuing Resolution 
Authority (“CRA”) for the Federal Government’s budget limits government 
agencies, unless specifically authorized otherwise in the CRA, to only 
spend up to 75% of the Federal Government’s previous fiscal year budget. 
Further impacting 2011, modifications to the Federal Acquisition Reform 
Act of 1996 redirected funds to small business set-asides away from larger 
prime contractors and emphasized a lower-cost strategy as compared 
to a best-value approach. The U.S. Congress’s inability to pass the 2011 
U.S. federal budget and its continuing to operate under a series of seven 
CRAs thereby continuing funding at or less than 75% of 2010 levels may 
negatively impact the GS segment’s 2012 performance. Despite the 
near-term challenges, however, we remain optimistic concerning the GS 
segment’s long-term prospects.
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The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) is intended to help the 
reader understand Kforce, our operations and our present business 
environment. MD&A is provided as a supplement to—and should 
be read in conjunction with—our Consolidated Financial Statements 
and the accompanying notes thereto contained in this Annual Report 
as well as the Business Overview for an overview of our operations 
and business environment. This overview summarizes the structure 
of our MD&A, which includes the following sections:

•  Executive Summary—an executive summary of our results of 
operations for 2011. 

•  Critical Accounting Estimates—a discussion of the accounting 
estimates that are most critical to fully understanding and 
evaluating our reported financial results and that require 
management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments. 

•  New Accounting Standards—a discussion of recently issued 
accounting standards and their potential impact on our 
Consolidated Financial Statements. 

•  Results of Operations—an analysis of Kforce’s consolidated 
results of operations for the three years presented in its  
Consolidated Financial Statements. In order to assist the reader 
in understanding our business as a whole, certain metrics are 
presented for each of our segments. 

•  Liquidity and Capital Resources—an analysis of cash flows, off-
balance sheet arrangements, stock repurchases and contractual 
obligations and commitments and the impact of changes in 
interest rates on our business. 

eXeCuTive Summary
The following is an executive summary of what Kforce believes 

are important 2011 highlights, which should be considered in the 
context of the additional discussions herein and in conjunction 
with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto. We 
believe such highlights are as follows: 

•  Net service revenues increased 12.1% to $1,111.0 million in 2011 
from $990.8 million in 2010. Net service revenues increased 
15.9% for Tech, 17.3% for FA, 1.9% for KCR and 19.0% for HIM 
and decreased 10.4% for GS.

•  Flex revenues increased 12.1% to $1,066.4 million in 2011 from 
$951.4 million in 2010. 

•  Search revenues increased 13.1% to $44.5 million in 2011 from 
$39.4 million in 2010. 

•  Flex gross profit margin decreased 40 basis points to 28.3% in 
2011 from 28.7% in 2010, primarily as a result of the increase in 
statutory payroll costs, particularly relating to unemployment 
taxes, which was partially offset by an increase in the spread 
between our bill and pay rates. Flex gross profit margin increased 
170 basis points for HIM and decreased 30 basis points for Tech, 
60 basis points for FA, 60 basis points for KCR and 150 basis 
points for GS. 

•  SG&A as a percentage of revenues for the year ended December 31, 
2011 was 26.0% compared to 26.8% in 2010. 

•  Net income increased 31.6% to $27.2 million in 2011 from $20.6 
million in 2010. 

•  The total amount outstanding under the Credit Facility, which 
was amended and restated in September 2011, increased $38.7 
million to $49.5 million as of December 31, 2011 from $10.8 
million as of December 31, 2010, which was primarily related to 
the repurchase of common stock in the open market.

•  During 2011, Kforce repurchased 5.7 million shares of common 
stock in the open market at a total cost of approximately  
$58.1 million.

•  Diluted earnings per share increased 37.3% to $0.70 per share in 
2011 from $0.51 per share in 2010. 

CriTiCal aCCounTinG eSTimaTeS
Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance 

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
(“GAAP”). In connection with the preparation of our Consolidated 
Financial Statements, we are required to make assumptions and 
estimates about future events, and apply judgments that affect 
the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and 
the related disclosures. We base our assumptions, estimates and 
judgments on historical experience, current trends, and other 
factors that management believes to be relevant at the time our 
Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared. On a regular 
basis, management reviews the accounting policies, estimates, 
assumptions and judgments to ensure that our Consolidated 
Financial Statements are presented fairly and in accordance with 
GAAP. However, because future events and their effects cannot 
be determined with certainty, actual results could differ from our 
assumptions and estimates, and such differences could be material. 

Our significant accounting policies are discussed in Note 1— 
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, included in this Annual Report. Management 
believes that the following accounting estimates are the most critical 
to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial 
results, and they require management’s most difficult, subjective or 
complex judgments, resulting from the need to make estimates about 
the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain.

manaGemenT’S diSCuSSion and analySiS oF FinanCial  
CondiTion and reSulTS oF operaTionS



allowanCe For douBTFul aCCounTS, FallouTS  
and oTher aCCounTS reCeivaBle reServeS

See Note 1—“Summary of Significant 
Accounting Policies” to the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, included in this Annual 
Report, for a complete discussion of our policies 
related to determining our allowance for 
doubtful accounts, fallouts and other accounts 
receivable reserves.

Kforce performs an ongoing analysis of factors 
including recent write-off and delinquency 
trends, changes in economic conditions, a specific 
analysis of material accounts receivable balances 
that are past due, and concentration of accounts 
receivable among clients, in establishing its 
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Kforce estimates its allowance for Search 
fallouts based on our extensive historical 
experience with the actual occurrence of fallouts.

Kforce estimates its reserve for future revenue 
adjustments (e.g. bill rate adjustments, time card 
adjustments, early pay discounts) based on our 
historical experience. 

We have not made any material changes in 
the accounting methodology used to establish 
our allowance for doubtful accounts, fallouts 
and other accounts receivable reserves. As of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, the allowance was 
1.4% and 2.6% as a percentage of gross accounts 
receivable, respectively.

 We do not believe there is a reasonable 
likelihood that there will be a material change in 
the future estimates or assumptions we use to 
calculate our allowance for doubtful accounts. 
However, if our estimates regarding estimated 
accounts receivable losses are inaccurate, we 
may be exposed to losses or gains that could be 
material. A 10% difference in actual accounts 
receivable losses reserved at December 31, 2011, 
would have impacted our net income for 2011 by 
less than $0.1 million.

 Although we do not believe that there is a 
reasonable likelihood that there will be a material 
change in the actual occurrence of fallouts, a 10% 
difference in our actual fallout experience reserved 
at December 31, 2011, would have impacted our 
net income for 2011 by less than $0.1 million.

 
description

 
Judgments and uncertainties

effect if actual results
differ From assumptions

Goodwill impairmenT
We evaluate goodwill for impairment annually 

or more frequently whenever events and 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of 
the goodwill may not be recoverable. See Note 5— 
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” to the Notes 
to Consolidated Financial Statements, included in 
this Annual Report for a complete discussion of the 
valuation methodology employed.

We completed our annual assessment of 
goodwill impairment as of December 31, 2011 
using the methodology described therein and 
determined there was no impairment.

The carrying value of goodwill as of  
December 31, 2011 by reporting unit was $17.0 
million, $8.0 million, $5.5 million, $4.9 million 
and $102.6 million for the Tech, FA, KCR, HIM and  
GS, respectively.

We determine the fair value of our reporting 
units using widely accepted valuation techniques, 
including discounted cash flow, market multiple 
analyses and market transactions analyses. 
These types of analyses contain uncertainties 
because they require management to make 
significant assumptions and judgments 
including: (i) an appropriate rate to discount the 
expected future cash flows, (ii) the inherent risk 
in achieving forecasted operating results, (iii) 
long-term growth rates, (iv) expectations for 
future economic cycles, (v) market comparable 
companies and appropriate adjustments thereto 
and (vi) market multiples.

It is our policy to conduct impairment testing 
based on our current business strategy in light 
of present industry and economic conditions, as 
well as future expectations.

Impairment was not indicated for any of our 
reporting units based on the results of the first 
step of the goodwill impairment assessment as 
of December 31, 2011. The fair value for Tech, FA, 
KCR, HIM and GS reporting units exceeded their 
carrying values by 52%, 81%, 68%, 60% and 9%, 
respectively.

As a result of the 9% gap between the fair 
value and carrying value of our GS reporting 
unit, we performed a sensitivity analysis by 
independently modifying the discount rate, 
weighting of the income and market approaches, 
long-term growth rate and forecasted operating 
results. A deterioration in the assumptions noted 
above could indicate impairment. However, we 
do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood 
that there will be a material change in the 
future estimates or assumptions we use to test 
for impairment losses on goodwill and other 
intangible assets. 

SelF-inSured liaBiliTieS
We are self-insured for certain losses related 

to health insurance and workers’ compensation 
claims. However, we obtain third-party insurance 
coverage to limit our exposure to these claims.

 When estimating our self-insured liabilities, we 
consider a number of factors, including historical 
claims experience, plan structure, internal claims 
management activities, demographic factors 
and severity factors. Periodically, management 
reviews its assumptions to determine the 
adequacy of our self-insured liabilities.

Our liabilities for health insurance and workers’ 
compensation claims as of December 31, 2011 
were $3.5 million and $1.5 million, respectively.

Our self-insured liabilities contain 
uncertainties because management is required 
to make assumptions and to apply judgment 
to estimate the ultimate total cost to settle 
reported claims and claims incurred but not 
reported as of the balance sheet date.

We have not made any material changes in the 
accounting methodology used to establish our self-
insured liabilities during the past three fiscal years.

We do not believe there is a reasonable 
likelihood that there will be a material change in 
the estimates or assumptions we use to calculate 
our self-insured liabilities. However, if actual 
results are not consistent with our estimates or 
assumptions, we may be exposed to losses or 
gains that could be material.

A 10% change in our self-insured liabilities 
related to health insurance and workers’ 
compensation as of December 31, 2011 would 
have impacted our net income for 2011 by 
approximately $0.5 million.

10  KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES



SToCk-BaSed CompenSaTion
We have stock-based compensation plans, 

which includes options, stock appreciation 
rights and unvested share awards and an 
employee stock purchase plan. See Note 1— 
“Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” 
Note 10—“Employee Benefit Plans,” and Note 12— 
“Stock Incentive Plans” to the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, included in 
this Annual Report for a complete discussion of 
our stock-based compensation programs.

We determine the fair value of our stock 
option awards and stock appreciation rights 
(“SARs”) at the date of grant using widely 
accepted option-pricing models such as Black-
Scholes. We determine the fair market value 
of our restricted stock (“RS”) and performance 
accelerated restricted stock (“PARS”) based 
on the closing stock price of Kforce’s common 
stock at the date of grant. We also utilize a 
lattice model to determine the derived service 
period for our SARs and PARS, which contain a 
market condition.

Option-pricing models and generally accepted 
valuation techniques require management to 
make assumptions and to apply judgment to 
determine the fair value of our awards. These 
assumptions and judgments include estimating 
the future volatility of our stock price, expected 
dividend yield, risk-free rates, future employee 
turnover rates and future employee stock 
option exercise behaviors. Changes in these 
assumptions can materially affect the estimate 
of fair value.

RS and PARS require management to make 
assumptions regarding the likelihood of 
achieving any performance conditions as well as 
employee turnover rates.

SARs and PARS also have certain market 
conditions, which are inherently difficult to 
estimate but are modeled using a Monte Carlo 
simulation model.

We do not believe there is a reasonable 
likelihood that there will be a material change in 
the future estimates or assumptions we use to 
determine stock-based compensation expense. 
However, if actual results are not consistent 
with our estimates or assumptions, we may be 
exposed to changes in stock-based compensation 
expense that could be material or the stock-
based compensation expense reported in our 
financial statements may not be representative 
of the actual economic cost of the stock- 
based compensation.

A 10% change in our stock-based compensation 
expense would have impacted our net income 
for 2011 by approximately $1.1 million.

deFined BeneFiT penSion plan—u.S.
We have a defined benefit pension plan 

that benefits certain named executive officers, 
the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 
(“SERP”) and a defined benefit postretirement 
health plan, the Supplemental Executive 
Retirement Health Plan (“SERHP”). See Note 10— 
“Employee Benefit Plans” to the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements included in 
this Annual Report for a complete discussion of 
the terms of these plans.

When estimating the obligation for our 
pension and postretirement benefit plans, 
management is required to make certain 
assumptions and to apply judgment with 
respect to determining an appropriate discount 
rate, bonus percentage assumptions, expected 
healthcare cost trends, applicability of healthcare 
regulations and expected future compensation 
increases for the participants in the plans, as 
they apply to our plans.

We do not believe there is a reasonable 
likelihood that there will be a material change in 
the estimates or assumptions we use to calculate 
our obligation. However, if actual results are not 
consistent with our estimates or assumptions, 
we may be exposed to losses or gains that could 
be material.

A 10% change in the discount rate used to 
measure the net periodic pension cost for the 
SERP and SERHP during 2011 would have had an 
insignificant impact on our net income for 2011.

aCCounTinG For inCome TaXeS
See Note 3—“Income Taxes” to the Notes to 

Consolidated Financial Statements, included in 
this Annual Report for a complete discussion of 
the components of Kforce’s income tax expense 
as well as the temporary differences that exist as 
of December 31, 2011.

Our consolidated effective income tax rate 
is influenced by tax planning opportunities 
available to us in the various jurisdictions in which 
we conduct business. Significant judgment is 
required in determining our effective tax rate 
and in evaluating our tax positions, including 
those that may be uncertain.

Kforce is also required to exercise judgment 
with respect to the realization of our net deferred 
tax assets. Management evaluates all positive 
and negative evidence and exercises judgment 
regarding past and future events to determine if 
it is more likely than not that all of some portion 
of the deferred tax assets may not be realized. If 
appropriate, a valuation allowance is recorded 
against deferred tax assets to offset future tax 
benefits that may not be realized. 

We do not believe that there is a reasonable 
likelihood that there will be a material change in 
our liability for uncertain income tax positions or 
our effective income tax rate. However, if actual 
results are not consistent with our estimates or 
assumptions, we may be exposed to losses that 
could be material. Kforce recorded a valuation 
allowance of $0.1 million as of December 31, 2011 
related primarily to state net operating losses. 

A 0.50% change in our effective income 
tax rate from continuing operations would 
have impacted our net income for 2011 by 
approximately $0.2 million.

 
description

 
Judgments and uncertainties

effect if actual results
differ From assumptions
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Net Service Revenues. The following table sets forth, as a percentage of net service revenues, certain items in our consolidated statements 
of operations for the years ended: 

December 31, 2011 2010  2009

Revenues by Segment: 
 Tech 56.2% 54.4% 51.4%
 FA 19.8 18.9 17.9
 KCR 9.5 10.5 11.9
 HIM 6.2 5.8 6.2
 GS 8.3 10.4 12.6

Net service revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Revenues by Time:      
 Flex 96.0% 96.0% 96.9%
 Search 4.0 4.0 3.1

Net service revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

       
Gross profit 31.2% 31.5% 31.4%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 26.0% 26.8% 27.6%
Income before income taxes 3.9% 3.5% 2.4%
Net income 2.4% 2.1% 1.4%

The following table details net service revenues for Flex and Search revenues by segment and changes from the prior year. 

    increase  Increase
(In thousands) 2011 (decrease) 2010 (Decrease) 2009

Tech          
 Flex $    606,238 16.1% $522,220 14.1% $457,544
 Search 17,774 8.7% 16,346 59.0% 10,280

  Total Tech $    624,012 15.9% $538,566 15.1% $467,824

FA          
 Flex $    194,359 17.2% $165,831 13.4% $146,186
 Search 25,216 18.0% 21,365 28.2% 16,670

  Total FA $    219,575 17.3% $187,196 14.9% $162,856

           
KCR          
 Flex $    105,147 1.8% $103,282 (4.0)% $107,535
 Search 1,025 18.1% 868 76.1% 493

  Total KCR $    106,172 1.9% $104,150 (3.6)% $108,028

           
HIM          
 Flex $       68,181 19.7% $56,965 $    01 0 Td2(ctua2(605,147)Tj2/T1_1 1 T31)681 e e

-�b0009>>> BDC 2(e)Tj2EMC 226.679 0 Td2(e)Tj2/Span<</Actu.e FFEFF0009>>> BDC 2(e)Tj2EMC 28.314 0 Td2(e)Tj2/Span<</ActualText<FEFF0009>>> 5t22610610b111tualText<FEFF0009>>> BDC 2(e)Tj2EMC 2/T1_2 1 Tf29.414 0 Td2(19.7%)Tj2/T1_1 1 Tf2/Span<</ActualText<FEFF0009>>> BDC 2(e)Tj20.Span<<Tf29.414 2/T811 1 Tf2/Span<</ActualT29 0 Td2(FF34750 Td2(0 Td2($F330 T38108.314 0 Td2(. 2(e20.Spa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pCFEFF00214 0 2b067pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pCFEFF00214 0 2b067pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pCFEFF00214 0 2b067pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa14 an<<4305J <(67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pa67pCFEFF00214 0 2b0031)Tj2EMC 2/T1_2 1 Tf29.414 0 Td2(19.7%)Tj2/T1_1 1 Tf27t4r5pa67pa1)Tj2)Tj2)Tj2)Tj2)Tj2T22T29.414 2/T84j2ee
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Flex Revenues. The primary drivers of Flex revenues are the 
number of consultant hours worked, the consultant bill rate per 
hour and, to a limited extent, the amount of billable expenses 
incurred by Kforce. 

Flex revenues for our largest segment, Tech, have been 
particularly strong compared to previous economic recoveries, 
which we believe is primarily a result of candidate skill sets that are 
in demand, our great people and our operating model. We believe 
that our operating model allows us to deliver our service offerings 
in a disciplined and consistent manner across all geographies and 
business lines. This operating model includes our NRC, which we 
believe has been highly effective in increasing the quality and 
speed of delivery of services to our clients, particularly our Strategic 
Accounts. We expect to see continued growth in 2012 within our 
Tech segment.

Our FA segment experienced an increase in net service revenues 
of 17.3% during the year ended December 31, 2011 compared 
to 2010. According to a recent SIA report, the overall finance and 
accounting segment is expected to experience a deceleration of 
growth to 8% in 2012 from 10% in 2011. Consistent with Tech, we 
believe that the success of our FA segment has been enabled by our 
NRC, which has been particularly effective in meeting the demand 
of our Strategic Accounts. We expect to see continued growth in 
2012 within our FA segment.

Net service revenues for KCR and HIM increased 1.9% and 19.0%, 
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2011 compared to 

2010. KCR continued to be impacted by structural changes in the 
outsourcing strategies of large pharmaceutical companies and 
delays in hiring activity resulting from several mergers within 
this sector and a trend of the large pharmaceutical companies 
to narrow their vendors. The single largest client within the KCR 
segment for the year ended December 31, 2011 has informed us 
that it intends to migrate substantially all of services performed 
by KCR to other vendors. This migration could be complete as early 
as December 2012. We are currently reassessing KCR’s competitive 
position and, given the changing landscape in the pharmaceutical 
industry, we are exploring all strategic alternatives for our KCR 
business, including, without limitation, a possible sale, possible 
joint ventures to enable us to provide international services, 
possible acquisitions and the possibility of continuing to operate 
our KCR business on its present course while we observe and react 
to industry developments. 

Net services revenues for HIM experienced continued growth 
as hospital census and spending continued to increase. We expect 
to see continued growth in 2012 within HIM driven primarily by 
requirements and deadlines related to ICD-10 conversion and 
electronic health records implementation. On February 16, 2012, the 
Department of Health and Human Services (“DHHS”) announced 
that the Federal Government will delay the implementation date 
for the ICD-10 diagnostic and procedural coding system for an 
unspecified period of time, which we do not expect will have a 
material adverse affect on HIM.
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While quarterly comparisons are not fully discussed herein, certain quarterly revenue trends are referred to in discussing annual 
comparisons. Our quarterly operating results are affected by the number of billing days in a quarter, which is provided in the table below. This 
2011 quarterly information is presented for this purpose only. 

 Three months ended

(In thousands, except Billing Days) december 31 September 30 June 30 march 31

Billing Days 61 64 64 63
Flex Revenues        
 Tech $156,543 $160,285 $149,997 $139,413
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The following table details total Flex hours for each segment and percentage changes over the prior period for the years ended December 31: 

   increase  Increase
(In thousands) 2011 (decrease) 2010 (Decrease) 2009

Tech 9,615 15.4% 8,333 14.1% 7,304
FA 5,731 13.8% 5,037 15.1% 4,378
KCR 1,129 1.1% 1,117 (7.4)% 1,206
HIM 1,061 24.2% 854 12.4% 760

Total hours 17,536 14.3% 15,341 12.4% 13,648

The changes in billable expenses, which are included as a component of net services revenues, are primarily attributable to increases or 
decreases in project work. Flex billable expenses for each of our segments were as follows for the years ended December 31: 

   increase  Increase
(In thousands) 2011 (decrease) 2010 (Decrease) 2009

Tech $   4,571 10.8% $  4,126 3.6% $  3,983
FA 641 71.4% 374 98.9% 188
KCR 9,430 23.2% 7,652 6.0% 7,219
HIM 5,955 (1.9)% 6,071 (10.7)% 6,797
GS 852 58.4% 538 (53.7)% 1,163

Total billable expenses $21,449 14.3% $18,761 (3.0)% $19,350
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Our GS segment experienced a decrease of 10.4% in net service 
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 
2010. We believe this decline is primarily a result of the political 
landscape, including the U.S. Congress’s inability to pass the 2011 
U.S. federal budget and its continuing to operate under a series of 
seven continuing resolutions thereby continuing funding at or less 
than 75% of 2010 levels, and the macro-economic environment. The 
GS segment has also been adversely impacted by delays in the timing 
of project awards and the uncertainty about the funding levels of 
various programs and agencies within the Federal Government. 
Additionally, the CRA for the Federal Government’s budget limits 
government agencies, unless specifically authorized otherwise 
in the CRA, to only spend up to 75% of the Federal Government’s 
previous fiscal year budget. Further impacting 2011, modifications 
to the Federal Acquisition Reform Act of 1996 has redirected funds 
to small business set-asides away from larger prime contractors 
and emphasized a lower-cost strategy as compared to a best-value 

approach. The majority of our GS contracts contain an initial one-
year term with four option years, which are typically exercised. At 
the end of this term, the contract award typically goes through a 
competitive bidding process to retain the contract. During 2011 and 
2010, management has focused its efforts on business development 
activities, including bringing in new leadership at certain positions 
and repositioning itself to focus on certain targeted federal agencies 
and expanding the solutions offering to the commercial sector. 
Management cannot predict the outcome of efforts to reduce 
federal spending and whether these efforts will materially impact 
the budgets of federal agencies that are clients of our GS segment. 
Despite the current challenges, we expect net service revenues 
within our GS segment to experience growth in 2012 as a result 
of the repositioning of our GS segment to include commercial 
opportunities and we continue to believe in the long-term prospects 
of our GS segment.

 Search Fees. The increase or decrease in Search fees is primarily 
attributable to the increase or decrease in the number of 
placements as well as the average fee earned on each placement. 
Search fees also include conversion revenues (conversions occur 
when consultants initially assigned to a client on a temporary basis 
are later converted to a permanent placement). Our GS segment 
does not make permanent placements. 

Search revenues increased 13.1% for the year ended December 31, 
2011 compared to 2010. We believe the increase over the prior year 
reflects clients who are selectively rebuilding staff after significant 
reductions during the most recent economic recession. While Search 
revenue is difficult to predict, we expect this trend may stabilize in 
the near term. 

Total placements for each segment were as follows for the years ended December 31:

   increase  Increase
  2011 (decrease) 2010 (Decrease) 2009

Tech 1,212 8.4% 1,118 51.3% 739
FA 2,001 9.9% 1,820 26.1% 1,443
KCR 41 36.7% 30 11.1% 27
HIM 73 25.9% 58 (20.5)% 73

Total placements 3,327 9.9% 3,026 32.6% 2,282

           



The increase in Flex gross profit from 2010 to 2011 was $28.7 
million, composed of a $33.0 million increase in volume and a $4.3 
million decrease in rate. The increase in Flex gross profit from 2009 
to 2010 was $15.4 million, composed of a $26.0 million increase in 
volume and a $10.6 million decrease in rate.

The Flex gross profit percentage was negatively impacted during 
the year ended December 31, 2011 by payroll taxes, particularly 
the increase in unemployment taxes in 2011 as compared to 2010. 
Payroll taxes, particularly unemployment taxes, are highest in the 
first quarter of the year because employees have not yet earned 
sufficient wages to exceed the basis on which taxes are payable, have 
risen in recent years and may continue to rise and negatively impact 
Flex gross profit. In addition, the new hire tax credit that arose as a 
result of the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment (HIRE) Act also 
benefited the Flex gross profit percentage in 2010. This incentive 

expired at the end of 2010; therefore, there is no corresponding 
benefit to the Flex gross profit percentage in 2011. Also negatively 
impacting Flex gross profit has been the relative growth seen in 
our Strategic Accounts, which traditionally have a lower gross profit 
profile. A significant continued focus for Kforce is optimizing the 
spread between bill rates and pay rates by providing our associates 
with tools, economic knowledge and defined programs to drive 
improvement in the effectiveness of our pricing strategy around the 
staffing services we provide. We believe this strategy will serve to 
balance the desire for optimal volume, rate, effort and duration of 
assignment, while ultimately maximizing the benefit for our clients, 
our consultants and Kforce. Kforce experienced an increase in the 
spread between our bill and pay rates in 2011 as a result, we believe, 
of this continued focus. We anticipate that our Flex gross profit 
margin will increase slightly in 2012. 
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The average fee per placement for each segment was as follows for the years ended December 31: 
 
   increase  Increase
  2011 (decrease) 2010 (Decrease) 2009

Tech $14,665 0.3% $14,615 5.1% $13,911
FA 12,605 7.3% 11,742 1.7% 11,549
KCR 24,992 (13.6)% 28,919 58.4% 18,253
HIM 7,264 (47.2)% 13,758 4.7% 13,144

Total average placement fee $13,391 2.9% $13,013 4.6% $12,444

Gross Profit. Gross profit on Flex billings is determined by deducting the direct cost of services (primarily flexible personnel payroll wages, 
payroll taxes, payroll-related insurance, and subcontractor costs) from net Flex service revenues. In addition, consistent with industry practices, 
gross profit dollars from Search fees are equal to revenues, because there are generally no direct costs associated with such revenues. 

The following table presents, for each segment, the gross profit percentage for the year as well as the increase or decrease over the 
preceding period, as follows: 

   increase  Increase
  2011 (decrease) 2010 (Decrease) 2009

Tech 29.3% (1.3)% 29.7% 3.8% 28.6%
FA 37.4% (1.1)% 37.8% (0.5)% 38.0%
KCR 26.9% (1.8)% 27.4% 3.0% 26.6%
HIM 35.6% 3.5% 34.4% (4.4)% 36.0%
GS 30.7% (4.7)% 32.2% (10.1)% 35.8%

Total gross profit percentage 31.2% (1.0)% 31.5% 0.3% 31.4%

Changes in the amount of Search fees as a percentage of total revenues can significantly impact total gross profit percentage because 
Search revenues contribute 100% to gross profit, as described previously. Given this dynamic, Kforce monitors the gross profit percentage as 
a percentage of Flex revenues, which is referred to as the Flex gross profit percentage. This provides management with the necessary insight 
into the other drivers of total gross profit percentage such as changes in volume evidenced by changes in hours billed for Flex and changes in 
the spread between bill rate and pay rate for Flex. 

The increase in Search gross profit from 2010 to 2011 was $5.2 million, composed of a $4.0 million increase in volume and a $1.2 million 
increase in rate. The increase in Search gross profit from 2009 to 2010 was $11.0 million, composed of a $9.4 million increase in volume and 
a $1.6 million increase in rate. 

The following table presents, for each segment, the Flex gross profit percentage for the years ended December 31: 

   increase  Increase
  2011 (decrease) 2010 (Decrease) 2009

Tech 27.2% (1.1)% 27.5% 1.9% 27.0%
FA 29.2% (2.0)% 29.8% (3.6)% 30.9%
KCR 26.2% (2.2)% 26.8% 1.9% 26.3%
HIM 35.1% 5.1% 33.4% (4.3)% 34.9%
GS 30.7% (4.7)% 32.2% (10.1)% 35.8%

Total Flex gross profit percentage 28.3% (1.4)% 28.7% (1.7)% 29.2%
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Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, total commissions, compensation, 
payroll taxes, and benefit costs as a percentage of SG&A represented 86.5%, 83.6% and 82.1%, respectively. Commissions and related payroll 
taxes and benefit costs are variable costs driven primarily by revenues and gross profit levels, and associate performance. Therefore, as gross 
profit levels change, these expenses are also generally anticipated to change but remain relatively consistent as a percentage of revenues. 

The following table presents these components of SG&A along with an “other” caption, which includes bad debt expense, lease expense, 
professional fees, travel, telephone, computer and certain other expenses; as an absolute amount and as a percentage of total net service 
revenues for the years ended December 31: 
   % of  % of  % of
(In thousands) 2011 revenues 2010 Revenues 2009 Revenues

Compensation, commissions,  
 payroll taxes and benefits costs $250,073 22.5% $221,602 22.4% $206,315 22.7%
Other 38,908 3.5 43,581 4.4 44,083 4.8
Impairment charges — — — — 870 0.1

Total SG&A $288,981 26.0% $265,183 26.8% $251,268 27.6%

             
SG&A as a percentage of net service revenues decreased 80 basis 

points in 2011 compared to 2010. This was primarily attributable to 
the following: 

•  Decrease in professional fees of 0.5% of net service revenues, which 
was primarily attributable to an accrual in 2010 for the expected 
settlement of a class action lawsuit and related legal fees. 

•  Decrease in lease expense of 0.2% of net service revenues, 
which was primarily attributable to the acquisition of our 
corporate headquarters during May 2010, which eliminated any 
future lease expense relating to this location.

•  Decrease of 0.3% of net revenues within certain discretionary 
expenses such as travel, telephone, meetings and conferences 
and office-related expenses including postage and supplies as a 
result of a focus on cost reduction and containment measures.

•  Increase in compensation and benefits cost of 0.3% of net 
service revenues, which was primarily attributable to an 
increase in stock-based compensation expense.

•  Increase in bad debt expense of 0.2% of net service revenues, 
which was primarily attributable to continued positive 
accounts receivable trends and a less substantial reduction in 
the allowance for doubtful accounts in 2011. 

As discussed above, our GS segment’s operations have been 
adversely impacted by the U.S. Congress’s inability to pass the 2011 
U.S. federal budget, delays in the contract procurement process, 
Federal Government mandates to in-source certain positions that 
were previously occupied by contractors. Kforce performed its 
annual goodwill impairment analysis as of December 31, 2011, 
which resulted in the fair value of the GS reporting unit exceeding 
its carrying amount by 9%. A deterioration in the assumptions 
discussed in Note 10—“Goodwill and Intangible Assets” to the 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this 
Annual Report, could result in a material impairment charge. As 
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, goodwill allocated to the GS 
reporting unit was $102.6 million.  

Depreciation and Amortization. The following table presents depreciation and amortization expense by major category for the years ended 
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 as well as the increases (decreases) experienced during 2010 and 2009: 

   increase  Increase
(In thousands) 2011 (decrease) 2010 (Decrease) 2009

Fixed asset depreciation $   4,197 11.1% $   3,777 19.3% $   3,167
Capital lease asset depreciation 1,629 (8.5) 1,781 (14.5) 2,084
Capitalized software amortization 5,716 16.1 4,925 11.3 4,426
Intangible asset amortization 1,152 (45.9) 2,128 6.6 1,996

Total depreciation and amortization $12,694 0.7% $12,611 8.0% $11,673

Fixed Asset Depreciation: The $0.4 million and $0.6 million 
increase in 2011 and 2010, respectively, primarily relates to the 
acquisition of Kforce’s corporate headquarters in May 2010. 

Capitalized Software Amortization: The $0.8 million and $0.5 
million increase in 2011 and 2010, respectively, primarily related 
to the significant technology investments made by Kforce in 2011 
and 2010. 

Intangible Asset Amortization: The $1.0 million decrease in 2011 
is primarily related to certain intangibles assets acquired in the 
2008 acquisition of dNovus becoming fully amortized. 

Other Expense, Net. Other expense, net was $1.3 million in 2011, 
$1.3 million in 2010 and $1.1 million in 2009, and consists primarily 
of interest expense related to Kforce’s Credit Facility. 

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense as a percentage of 
income before income taxes (our “effective rate”) for each of the 
three years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was 37.3%, 
38.1%, and 41.2%, respectively. The decrease in Kforce’s effective 
rate for 2011 and 2010 is primarily a result of higher pretax net 
income. In addition, Kforce’s effective rate for 2011 benefited from 
the general business tax credit stemming from the HIRE act. 
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The following table presents Adjusted EBITDA results and includes a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income for the years ended 
December 31:

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 per Share 2010 Per Share 2009 Per Share

Net income $27,156 $0.70 $20,634 $0.51 $12,873 $0.33
Intangible assets impairment, pretax —  —  — — 870 0.02
Depreciation and amortization 12,694 0.33 12,611 0.31 11,673 0.30
Acceleration of PARS and SARs —  —  — — 3,624 0.09
Amortization of stock options and SARs —  —  — — 127 0.00
Amortization of RS and PARS 11,976 0.31 6,036 0.15 2,620 0.07
Interest expense and other 1,333 0.03 1,254 0.03 1,338 0.03
Income tax expense 16,155 0.42 12,690 0.31 9,020 0.23

Adjusted EBITDA $69,314 $1.79 $53,225 $1.31 $42,145 $1.07

Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA, a non-GAAP financial measure, 
is defined as net income before discontinued operations, non-
cash impairment charges, interest, income taxes, depreciation and 
amortization, and acceleration and amortization of stock-based 
compensation expense. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered 
a measure of financial performance under GAAP. Items excluded 
from Adjusted EBITDA are significant components in understanding 
and assessing our past and future financial performance, and 
this presentation should not be construed as an inference by us 
that our future results will be unaffected by those items excluded 
from Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA is a key measure used 
by management to evaluate its operations including its ability 
to generate cash flows and, consequently, management believes 
this is useful information to investors. The measure should not 
be considered in isolation or as an alternative to net income, 
cash flows or other financial statement information presented in 

the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements as 
indicators of financial performance or liquidity. The measure is not 
determined in accordance with GAAP and is thus susceptible to 
varying calculations. Also, Adjusted EBITDA, as presented, may not 
be comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

Some of the items that are excluded also impacted certain 
balance sheet assets, resulting in all or a portion of an asset being 
written off without a corresponding recovery of cash we may have 
previously spent with respect to the asset. In addition, although we 
excluded stock-based compensation expense (which we expect to 
continue to incur in the future) because it is a non-cash expense, the 
associated stock issued may result in an increase in our outstanding 
shares of stock, which may result in the dilution of our stockholder 
ownership interest. We encourage you to evaluate these items and 
the potential risks of excluding such items when analyzing our 
financial position. 

liquidiTy and CapiTal reSourCeS
To meet our capital and liquidity requirements, we primarily rely on 

operating cash flow as well as borrowings under our existing Credit 
Facility. At December 31, 2011, Kforce had $103.1 million in working 
capital compared to $64.9 million in 2010. Kforce’s current ratio 
(current assets divided by current liabilities) was 2.2 at the end of 
2011 and 1.6 at the end of 2010. As a result of the increase in Kforce’s 
long-term debt, which was used primarily for $58.1 million open 
market repurchases of common stock during 2011, our percentage of 
borrowings under our Credit Facility to equity increased to 21.2% as 
of December 31, 2011 from 4.3% as of December 31, 2010. 

Please see the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Cash 
Flows for each of the three years ended December 31, 2011 for a 
more detailed description of our cash flows. Kforce is principally 
focused on achieving the appropriate balance in the following 
areas of cash flow: (i) achieving positive cash flow from operating 
activities; (ii) reducing the outstanding balance of our Credit 
Facility; (iii) repurchasing our common stock; (iv) investing in our 
infrastructure to allow sustainable growth via capital expenditures; 
and (v) making strategic acquisitions. 

We believe that existing cash and cash equivalents, cash flow from 
operations, and available borrowings under our Credit Facility will 
be adequate to meet the capital expenditure and working capital 
requirements of our operations for at least the next 12 months. 

However, significant deterioration in the economic environment 
or market conditions, among other things, could negatively impact 
operating results and liquidity as well as the ability of our lenders to 
fund borrowings. There is no assurance that: (i) our lenders will be 
able to fund our borrowings or (ii) if operations were to deteriorate 
and additional financing were to become necessary, we would be 
able to obtain financing in amounts sufficient to meet operating 
requirements or at terms which are satisfactory and which allow us 
to remain competitive. 

Actual results could also differ materially from those indicated 
as a result of a number of factors, including the use of currently 
available resources for possible acquisitions and possible additional 
stock repurchases. 

The following table presents a summary of our cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities, as follows: 
 
    Years Ended December 31,

(In thousands)  2011 2010 2009

Cash provided by (used in):      
 Operating activities $ 31,240 $ 28,590 $ 42,696
 Investing activities (10,090) (35,768) (6,039)
 Financing activities (21,266) 5,421 (34,505)

Net (decrease) increase in 
 cash and cash equivalents $      (116) $   (1,757) $   2,152



KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES  19

operating activities 
The significant variations in cash provided by operating activities 

and net income are principally related to adjustments to net 
income for certain non-cash charges such as the intangible asset 
impairment charge, depreciation and amortization expense and 
stock-based compensation. These adjustments are more fully 
detailed in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three 
years ended December 31, 2011. Our largest source of operating 
cash flows is the collection of trade receivables and our largest 
use of operating cash flows is the payment of our employee and 
consultant populations’ compensation, which includes base salary, 
commissions and bonuses, and subcontractor costs. 

investing activities 
Capital expenditures have been made over the years on Kforce’s 

infrastructure as we anticipate growth in our business. Capital 
expenditures during 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $6.5 million, $37.7 
million and $3.8 million, respectively. The increase in cash used for 
capital expenditures during the year ended December 31, 2010 was 
primarily a result of the acquisition of our corporate headquarters 
in May 2010 for a total purchase price, including acquisition-related 
costs, of $28.9 million. 

We expect to continue to selectively invest in our infrastructure 
in order to support the expected future growth in our business. 
Kforce believes it has sufficient cash and availability under its Credit 
Facility to make any expected necessary capital expenditures in the 
foreseeable future. In addition, we continually review our portfolio 
of businesses and their operations in comparison to our internal 
strategic and performance objectives. As part of this review, we may 
acquire other businesses and further invest in, fully divest and/or 
sell parts of our current businesses. 

Financing activities 
During 2011, open market repurchases of common stock were 

$58.1 million. There were no open market repurchases of common 
stock in 2009 or 2010. 

Credit Facility 
On September 20, 2011, Kforce entered into a Third Amended and 

Restated Credit Agreement, with a syndicate led by Bank of America, 
N.A. The maximum borrowings available to Kforce under the Credit 
Facility are limited to: (a) a revolving credit facility of up to $100 
million (the “Revolving Loan Amount”) and (b) a $15 million sub-
limit included in the Credit Facility for letters of credit. 



of Directors approved an increase to the existing authorization for 
repurchases of common stock by $75.0 million (exclusive of any 
previously unused authorizations). As of December 31, 2011, $84.2 
million remains available for future repurchases. 
 On December 30, 2010, Kforce filed a Form 8-K with the SEC 
announcing that it had entered into a corporate stock repurchase 
plan in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act, which 
was effective from January 6, 2011 through February 11, 2011. 
This corporate stock repurchase plan was subject to certain price, 
market, volume and timing constraints which were specified in the 

plan. Pursuant to this plan, Kforce repurchased 0.1 million shares 
at a total purchase price of $1.7 million. Also, Kforce repurchased 
0.2 million shares at a total purchase price of $3.4 million from 
February 12, 2011 through March 4, 2011.

On December 28, 2011, Kforce filed a Form 8-K with the SEC 
announcing that it had entered into a corporate stock repurchase 
plan in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act, which 
is effective from December 23, 2011 through May 3, 2012. This 
corporate stock repurchase plan was subject to certain price, market, 
volume and timing constraints, which were specified in the plan.
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Contractual obligations and Commitments
The following table presents our expected future contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011: 

 Payments due by period

   Less than   More than
(In thousands) Total 1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 years

Operating lease obligations $  11,848 $  5,958 $  5,726 $      128 $        36
Capital lease obligations 3,702 1,806 1,557 339 — 
Credit Facility (a) 49,526 —  —  49,526 — 
Interest payable—Credit Facility (b) 4,234 891 1,783 1,560 — 
Purchase obligations 12,701 6,983 5,594 124 — 
Liability for unrecognized tax positions (c) —  —  —  —  — 
Deferred compensation plan liability (d) 18,172 550 963 309 16,350
Other (e) —  —  —  —  — 
Supplemental executive retirement plan (f) 44,728 —  10,994 —  33,734
Supplement executive retirement health plan (f) 21,750 —  94 149 21,507
Foreign defined benefit pension plan (g) 20,292 —  343 17 19,932

Total $186,953 $16,188 $27,054 $52,152 $91,559

 
(a) The Credit Facility expires in September 2016. 
(b)  Kforce’s weighted average interest rate as of December 31, 2011 was 1.80%, which was utilized to forecast the expected future interest rate payments. These payments are inherently 

uncertain due to interest rate and outstanding borrowings fluctuations that will occur over the remaining term of the Credit Facility. 
(c)  Kforce’s liability for unrecognized tax positions as of December 31, 2011 was $0.1 million. This balance has been excluded from the table above due to the significant uncertainty with 

respect to expected settlements. 
(d)  Kforce has a non-qualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which eligible highly-compensated key employees may elect to defer part of their compensation to later years. These 

amounts, which are classified as other accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities, respectively, are payable upon retirement or termination of employment. Amounts payable upon 
the retirement or termination of employment may become payable during the next five years if covered employees schedule a distribution, retire or terminate during that time. 

(e)  Kforce provides letters of credit to certain vendors in lieu of cash deposits. Kforce currently has letters of credit totaling $3.0 million outstanding as security for workers’ compensation and 
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manaGemenT reporT on inTernal ConTrol  
over FinanCial reporTinG

The management of Kforce is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in 
Rules 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act. Kforce’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to Kforce’s management 
and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. 

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be 
effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. 

Under the supervision and with the participation of the CEO and the CFO, Kforce’s management assessed the effectiveness of Kforce’s 
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. In making this assessment, it used the criteria set forth by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment we 
believe that, as of December 31, 2011, Kforce’s internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. 

Kforce’s independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, has issued an audit report on our internal control over 
financial reporting. This report follows.



 
reporT oF independenT reGiSTered puBliC aCCounTinG Firm
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Kforce Inc.
Tampa, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kforce Inc. and subsidiaries (“Kforce”) as of December 31, 2011 and 
2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2011. We also have audited Kforce’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 
2011, based on Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. 
Kforce’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for 
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on internal 
control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and an opinion on Kforce’s internal 
control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of 
the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s principal executive 
and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and 
other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management 
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of 
any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Kforce as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, 
Kforce maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on the criteria 
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
 

Certified Public Accountants

Tampa, Florida
March 8, 2012
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ConSolidaTed STaTemenTS oF operaTionS 
and ComprehenSive inCome (loSS)

(In thousands except per share amounts) 

Years Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009 

Net service revenues $1,110,919 $990,807 $910,136

Direct costs of services 764,616 678,393 624,157

Gross profit 346,303 312,414 285,979

Selling, general and administrative expenses 288,981 265,183 251,268

Depreciation and amortization 12,694 12,611 11,673

Income from operations 44,628 34,620 23,038

Other expense (income):   

 Interest expense 1,256 1,274 1,437

 Other expense (income) 61 22 (292)

Income before income taxes 43,311 33,324 21,893

Income tax expense 16,155 12,690 9,020

Net income 27,156 20,634 12,873

Other comprehensive loss:   

 Pension and postretirement plans adjustments, net of tax (2,570) (267) (1,602)

Comprehensive income $       24,586 $   20,367 $  11,271

Earnings per share—basic $0.72 $0.52 $0.33

Earnings per share—diluted $0.70 $0.51 $0.33

Weighted average shares outstanding—basic 37,835 39,480 38,485

Weighted average shares outstanding—diluted 38,831 40,503 39,330

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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noTeS To ConSolidaTed FinanCial STaTemenTS

(In thousands, except per share data)

1. Summary of Significant accounting PolicieS 

organization and nature of operations 
Kforce Inc. and subsidiaries (“Kforce”) is a provider of professional 

staffing services and solutions to its customers in the following 
segments: Technology (“Tech”), Finance and Accounting (“FA”), 
Clinical Research (“KCR”), Health Information Management (“HIM”) 
and Government Solutions (“GS”). Kforce provides flexible staffing 
services and solutions on both a temporary and full-time basis. 
Kforce operates through its corporate headquarters in Tampa, Florida 
as well its 62 field offices, which are located throughout the United 
States (the “U.S.”). One of our subsidiaries, Kforce Global Solutions, 
Inc. (“Global”), provides information technology outsourcing 
services internationally through an office in Manila, Philippines. Our 
international operation comprised approximately 2% of net service 
revenues for each of the three years ended December 31, 2011 and 
is included in our Tech segment. 

Kforce serves clients from the Fortune 1000, the Federal 
Government, state and local governments, local and regional 
companies and small to mid-sized companies. 

Basis of presentation 
The consolidated financial statements of Kforce have been 

prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and the rules of 
the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). 

principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 

Kforce Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. References in this 
document to “Kforce,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” or “us” refer to 
Kforce Inc. and its subsidiaries, except where the context indicates 
otherwise. All intercompany transactions and balances have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

use of estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. The most important of these estimates 
and assumptions relate to the following: accounting for goodwill 
and identifiable intangible assets and any related impairment; stock-
based compensation; obligations for pension and postretirement 
benefit plans; self-insured liabilities for workers’ compensation and 
health insurance; allowance for doubtful accounts, fallouts and 
other accounts receivable reserves and accounting for income taxes. 
Although these and other estimates and assumptions are based on 
the best available information, actual results could be materially 
different from these estimates. 

Cash and Cash equivalents 
Kforce classifies all highly liquid investments with an original 

initial maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents. Cash 
and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand with banks, either in 
commercial accounts, or overnight interest-bearing money market 

accounts and at times may exceed federally insured limits. Cash and 
cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value 
due to the short duration of their maturities. 

accounts receivable reserves 
Kforce establishes its reserves for expected credit losses, fallouts, 

early payment discounts and revenue adjustments based on past 
experience and estimates of potential future activity. Specific to our 
allowance for doubtful accounts, which comprises a majority of our 
accounts receivable reserves, Kforce performs an ongoing analysis 
of factors including recent write-off and delinquency trends, a 
specific analysis of significant receivable balances that are past 
due, the concentration of accounts receivable among clients and 
higher-risk sectors, and the current state of the U.S. economy. Trade 
receivables are written off by Kforce after all reasonable collection 
efforts have been exhausted. 

Accounts receivable reserves as a percentage of gross accounts 
receivable were 1.4% and 2.6% as of December 31, 2011 and 
December 31, 2010, respectively.

 
revenue recognition 

We earn revenues from two primary sources: Flexible billings 
and Search fees. Flexible billings are recognized as the services are 
provided by Kforce’s temporary employees, who are Kforce’s legal 
employees while they are working on assignments. Kforce pays all 
related costs of such employment, including workers’ compensation 
insurance, state and federal unemployment taxes, social security and 
certain fringe benefits. Search fees are recognized by Kforce when 
employment candidates accept offers of permanent employment 
and are scheduled to commence employment within 30 days. 
Kforce records revenues net of an estimated reserve for “fallouts,” 
which is based on Kforce’s historical fallout experience. Fallouts 
occur when a candidate does not remain employed with the client 
through the contingency period, which is typically 90 days or less. 

Net service revenues represent services rendered to customers 
less credits, discounts, rebates and allowances. Revenues include 
reimbursements of travel and out-of-pocket expenses (“billable 
expenses”) with equivalent amounts of expense recorded in direct 
costs of services. 

Our GS segment generates its revenues under contracts that 
are, in general, greater in duration than our other segments and 
which can often span several years. In addition, our GS generates 
substantially all of its revenues under time-and-materials (which 
account for the majority of this segment’s contracts), fixed-price 
and cost-plus arrangements. Our GS segment does not generate 
any Search fees. Except as provided below, Kforce considers 
amounts to be earned once evidence of an arrangement has been 
obtained, services are delivered, fees are fixed or determinable, and 
collectability is reasonably assured. 

•  Revenues for time-and-materials contracts, which accounts 
for approximately 61% of this segment’s revenue, are recorded 
based on contractually established billing rates at the time 
services are provided. 

•  Revenues on fixed-price contracts are recognized on 
the basis of the estimated percentage-of-completion. 
Approximately 22% of this segment’s revenues are 
recognized under this method. Progress towards 
completion is typically measured based on costs incurred 
as a proportion of estimated total costs or other measures 
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of progress when applicable. Profit in a given period is reported 
at the expected profit margin to be achieved on the overall 
contract. 

•  Revenue on cost-plus arrangements is recognized based on 
allowable costs incurred plus an estimate of the applicable 
fees earned. Approximately 11% of this segment’s revenues are 
recognized under these arrangements.

direct Costs of Services 
Direct costs of services are composed primarily of payroll wages, 

payroll taxes, payroll-related insurance for Kforce’s flexible employees, 
and subcontractor costs. Direct costs of permanent placement 
services primarily consist of reimbursable expenses. Direct costs 
of services exclude depreciation and amortization expense, which 
is presented on a separate line in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations and comprehensive income.

income Taxes 
Kforce accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability 

approach to the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for 
the expected future tax consequences of differences between the 
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and 
liabilities. Unless it is “more likely than not” that a deferred tax asset 
can be utilized to offset future taxes, a valuation allowance is recorded 
against that asset. The tax benefits of deductions attributable 
to employees’ disqualifying dispositions of shares obtained from 
incentive stock options, exercises of non-qualified stock options, and 
vesting of restricted stock are reflected as increases in additional 
paid-in capital. 

 Kforce evaluates tax positions that have been taken or are expected 
to be taken in its tax returns, and records a liability for uncertain tax 
positions. Kforce uses a two-step approach to recognize and measure 
uncertain tax positions. First, tax positions are recognized if the 
weight of available evidence indicates that it is more likely than not 
that the position will be sustained upon examination, including 
resolution of related appeals or litigation processes, if any. Second, 
tax positions are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that 
has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. 
Kforce recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized 
tax benefits in the provision for income taxes in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Fair value measurements 
Kforce uses the framework established by the Financial Accounting 

Standards Board (“FASB”) for measuring fair value and disclosures 
about fair value measurements. Kforce uses fair value measurements 
in areas that include, but are not limited to: the allocation of purchase 
price consideration to tangible and identifiable intangible assets; 
impairment testing of goodwill and long-lived assets; share-based 
compensation arrangements and capital lease obligations. The 
carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, 
accounts payable, and other current assets and liabilities approximate 
fair value because of the short-term nature of these instruments. 
The carrying value of our debt approximates fair value due to the 
variable nature of the interest rates under Kforce’s credit facility 
resulting from the Third Amended and Restated Credit Agreement 
that it entered into on September 20, 2011 with a syndicate led by 
Bank of America, N.A. (the “Credit Facility”). Using available market 

information and appropriate valuation methodologies, Kforce has 
determined the estimated fair value measurements; however, 
considerable judgment is required in interpreting data to develop 
the estimates of fair value.

Fixed assets 
Fixed assets are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The cost of leasehold 
improvements is amortized using the straight-line method over the 
shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets or the terms of the 
related leases, which generally range from three to five years. 

Goodwill and other intangible assets 
Goodwill 

Kforce performs a goodwill impairment analysis, using the two-
step method, on an annual basis and whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. 
The recoverability of goodwill is measured at the reporting unit level, 
which Kforce has determined to be consistent with its operating 
segments; by comparing the reporting unit’s carrying amount, 
including goodwill, to the fair market value of the reporting unit. 
Kforce determines the fair market value of its reporting units based 
on a weighting of both the present value of projected future cash 
flows (the “income approach”) and the use of comparative market 
multiples (the “market approach”). Fair market value using the 
income approach is based on Kforce’s estimated future cash flows 
on a discounted basis. The market approach compares each of 
Kforce’s reporting units to other comparable companies based on 
valuation multiples derived from operational and transactional 
data to arrive at a fair value. Factors requiring significant judgment 
include, among others, the determination of comparable companies, 
assumptions related to forecasted operating results, discount rates, 
long-term growth rates, and market multiples. Changes in economic 
or operating conditions that occur after the annual impairment 
analysis and which impact these assumptions, may result in a future 
goodwill impairment charge, which could be material to Kforce’s 
consolidated financial statements. 

As is more fully described in Note 5—“Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets,” Kforce completed its annual goodwill impairment 
test as of December 31, 2011 for each of its reporting units. No 
impairment charges were recorded during the three years ended 
December 31, 2011. 

Other Intangible Assets 
Identifiable intangible assets arising from certain of Kforce’s 

acquisitions include non-compete and employment agreements, 
contractual relationships, customer contracts, trademarks and trade 
names. For definite-lived intangible assets, Kforce has determined 
that the straight-line method is an appropriate methodology to 
allocate the cost over the period of expected benefit, which ranges 
from one to 15 years. 

The impairment evaluation for indefinite-lived intangible 
assets, which for Kforce consist of trademarks and trade names, 
is conducted on an annual basis or more frequently if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired. 
As is more fully described in Note 5—“Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets,” Kforce recognized impairment charges of $870 for the year 
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ended December 31, 2009 which is included in selling, general 
and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations and comprehensive income. No 
impairment charge was recorded for the years ended December 31, 
2011 or 2010. 

impairment of long-lived assets 
Kforce reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events 

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of 
such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of long-lived 
assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the 
asset group to the future undiscounted net cash flows expected 
to be generated by those assets. If such assets are considered to 
be impaired, the impairment charge recognized is the amount by 
which the carrying amounts of the assets exceed the fair value 
of the assets. Other than the impairment charges discussed in 
the preceding section, there were no other impairment charges 
recorded during the three years ended December 31, 2011. 

 
Capitalized Software 

Kforce purchases, develops, and implements new computer 
software to enhance the performance of our Company-wide 
technology infrastructure. Direct internal costs, such as payroll 
and payroll-related costs, and external costs incurred during the 
development stage of each project, are capitalized and classified 
as capitalized software. Kforce capitalized development-stage 
implementation costs of $2,876, $4,504 and $1,832 during the years 
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Capitalized 
software development costs are classified as other assets, net in 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and are being 
amortized over the estimated useful lives of the software, which 
range from one to five years, using the straight-line method. 

Commissions 
Our associates make placements and earn commissions as a 

percentage of actual revenues (for Search revenue) or gross profit 
(for Flex revenue) pursuant to a calendar-year-basis commission 
plan. The amount of commissions paid as a percentage of revenues 
or gross profit increases as volume increases. Kforce accrues 
commissions for actual revenues or gross profit at a percentage 
equal to the percent of total expected commissions payable to total 
revenues or gross profit for the year, as applicable. 

Stock-Based Compensation 
Kforce accounts for stock-based compensation by measuring the 

cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity 
instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award. Due to 
the types of equity instruments issued by Kforce over the last several 
years, that cost is usually recognized over a derived service period, 
net of estimated forfeitures. No compensation cost is recognized for 
equity instruments for which employees do not render the requisite 
service. For awards settled in cash, we measure compensation 
expense based on the fair value of the award at each reporting date, 
net of estimated forfeitures. For awards issued with performance 
conditions, Kforce recognizes compensation expense for only the 
portion of the award that is expected to vest, rather than record 
forfeitures when they occur. If the actual number of forfeitures differs 
from those estimated, additional adjustments to compensation 

expense may be required in future periods. Total compensation 
expense recognized during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 
and 2009 was $11,976, $7,599 and $8,838, respectively. The related 
tax benefit for the three years ended December 31, 2011 was $4,696, 
$2,989 and $3,491, respectively.

workers’ Compensation 
Kforce retains the economic burden for the first $250 per 

occurrence in workers’ compensation claims except: (i) in states 
that require participation in state-operated insurance funds and (ii) 
for its GS segment which is fully insured for workers’ compensation 
claims. Workers’ compensation includes ongoing healthcare and 
indemnity coverage for claims and may be paid over numerous 
years following the date of injury. Workers’ compensation expense 
includes insurance premiums paid, claims administration fees 
charged by Kforce’s workers’ compensation administrator, premiums 
paid to state-operated insurance funds and an estimate for Kforce’s 
liability for Incurred but Not Reported (“IBNR”) claims and for the 
ongoing development of existing claims. 

Kforce estimates its workers’ compensation liability based 
upon historical claims experience, actuarially determined loss 
development factors, and qualitative considerations such as claims 
management activities. 

Taxes assessed by Governmental agencies—revenue producing 
Transactions 

Kforce collects sales tax for various taxing authorities and it is 
our policy to record these amounts on a net basis; thus, sales tax 
amounts are not included in net service revenues. 

health insurance 
Except for certain fully insured health insurance lines of coverage, 

Kforce retains liability of up to $270 annually for each health 
insurance plan participant. For its partially self-insured lines of 
coverage, health insurance costs are accrued using estimates to 
approximate the liability for reported claims and IBNR claims, 
which are primarily based upon an evaluation of historical claims 
experience, actuarially-determined completion factors and a 
qualitative review of our health insurance exposure including the 
extent of outstanding claims and expected changes in health 
insurance costs. 

Business Combinations 
Kforce utilizes the acquisition method in accounting for 

acquisitions whereby the amount of purchase price that exceeds the 
fair value of the acquired assets and assumed liabilities is allocated 
to goodwill. Kforce recognizes intangible assets apart from goodwill 
if they arise from contractual or other legal rights, or if they are 
capable of being separated or divided from the acquired entity and 
sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged. Assumptions and 
estimates are used in determining the fair value of assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed in a business combination. Valuation of 
intangible assets acquired requires that we use significant judgment 
in determining fair value, whether such intangibles are amortizable 
and, if the asset is amortizable, the period and the method by 
which the intangible asset will be amortized. Changes in the 
initial assumptions could lead to changes in amortization charges 
recorded in our financial statements. Additionally, estimates for 



30  KFORCE INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

purchase price allocations may change as subsequent information 
becomes available. There were no acquisitions in the three years 
ended December 31, 2011.

accounting for postretirement Benefits 
Kforce recognizes the overfunded or underfunded status of its 

defined benefit postretirement plans as an asset or liability in 
its consolidated balance sheets and recognizes changes in that 
funded status in the year in which the changes occur through other 
comprehensive income. Kforce also measures the funded status of 
the defined benefit postretirement plans as of the date of its fiscal 
year-end, with limited exceptions. 

Amortization of a net unrecognized gain or loss in accumulated 
other comprehensive income is included as a component of net 
periodic benefit cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost 
if, as of the beginning of the year, that net gain or loss exceeds 10% 
of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation. If amortization is required, the 
minimum amortization shall be that excess divided by the average 
remaining service period of active plan participants. 

earnings per Share 
Basic earnings per share is computed as earnings divided by the 

weighted average number of common shares outstanding during 
the period. Basic weighted average shares outstanding excludes 
unvested shares of restricted stock (“RS”) and performance-
accelerated restricted stock (“PARS”). Diluted earnings per common 
share is computed by dividing the earnings attributable to common 
shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of 
common shares outstanding during the period plus the dilutive 
effect of stock options and other potentially dilutive securities such 
as unvested shares of RS using the treasury stock method, except 
where the effect of including potential common shares would be 
anti-dilutive. Weighted average shares outstanding for purposes of 
computing diluted earnings per common share excludes contingently 
issuable unvested PARS unless the performance condition has been 
achieved as of the end of the applicable reporting period. 

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted 
earnings per share for the three years ended December 31, 2011: 

     2011 2010 2009

Numerator:      
 Net income $27,156 $20,634 $12,873

Denominator:      
 Weighted average shares  
  outstanding—basic 37,835 39,480 38,485
 Common stock equivalents 996 1,023 845

Weighted average shares  
 outstanding—diluted 38,831 40,503 39,330

Earnings per share—basic $0.72 $0.52 $0.33

Earnings per share—diluted $0.70 $0.51 $0.33

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the total 
weighted average awards to purchase or receive 33, 74 and 2,078 
shares of common stock were not included in the computation of 

diluted earnings per share, respectively, because these would have 
had an anti-dilutive effect on earnings per share. 

Treasury Stock
Kforce’s Board of Directors (“Board”) may authorize share 

repurchases of Kforce’s common stock. Shares repurchased under 
Board authorizations are held in treasury for general corporate 
purposes, including issuances under various employee share-based 
award plans. Treasury shares are accounted for under the cost 
method and reported as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Comprehensive income 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) represents the 

net after-tax impact of unrecognized actuarial gains and losses 
related to (i) the supplemental executive retirement plan and 
supplemental executive retirement health plan, both of which cover a 
limited number of executives, and (ii) a defined benefit plan covering 
all eligible employees in our Philippine operations. Because each 
of these plans is unfunded as of December 31, 2011, the actuarial 
gains and losses arise as a result of the actuarial experience of the 
plans as well as changes in actuarial assumptions in measuring 
the associated obligation as of year-end, or an interim date if any 
re-measurement is necessary. This information is provided in our 
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income.

 
new accounting Standards 

In September 2011, the FASB issued guidance which provides 
entities testing goodwill for impairment the option of performing 
a qualitative assessment before calculating the fair value of a 
reporting unit in step 1 of the goodwill impairment test. If entities 
determine, on the basis of qualitative factors, that the fair value of a 
reporting unit is more likely than not less than the carrying amount, 
the two-step impairment test would be required. Otherwise, 
further testing would not be required. This guidance is effective 
for all entities for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests 
performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 and 
early adoption is permitted. Kforce does not expect the adoption of 
this guidance to have a material impact on its future consolidated 
financial statements.

In December 2011, the FASB issued authoritative guidance 
regarding the presentation of netting assets and liabilities as a 
single amount in the statement of financial position to address 
the difference between GAAP and international financial reporting 
standards (“IFRS”). This guidance is to be applied for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and interim periods 
within those annual periods. Kforce does not expect the adoption of 
this guidance to have a material impact on its future consolidated 
financial statements.
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2. fixed aSSetS 
Major classifications of fixed assets and related useful lives are 

summarized as follows: 

December 31, Useful Life 2011 2010

Land     $   5,892 $   5,892
Building and improvements 5-40 years 25,009 24,995
Furniture and equipment 5-7 years 7,604 7,261
Computer equipment 3-5 years 6,007 5,162
Leasehold improvements 3-5 years 4,019 3,914
Capital leases 3-5 years 6,432 6,114

        54,963 53,338
Less accumulated depreciation 
 and amortization   18,839 15,208

        $36,124 $38,130

On May 27, 2010, Kforce acquired its corporate headquarters 
for an aggregate purchase price of $28,509. The purchase price 
was allocated between land and building and improvements in 
the amounts of $4,581 and $23,928, respectively. The estimated 
useful lives of the building and improvements range from 5 to 40 
years. Upon the closing of the transaction, all lease agreements 
and amendments related to our corporate headquarters were 
immediately terminated. 

Depreciation and amortization expense during the years ended 
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $5,826, $5,558 and  
$5,251, respectively. 

3. income taxeS
The provision for income taxes from continuing operations 

consists of the following: 

Years Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009

Current:      
 Federal $13,289 $9,062 $7,192
 State  2,213 1,094 547
Deferred  653 2,534 1,281

      $16,155 $12,690 $9,020

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations shown 
above varied from the statutory federal income tax rate for those 
periods as follows: 

Years Ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009

Federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes,  
 net of Federal tax effect 3.7 3.8 2.6
Other   (1.4) (0.7) 3.6

Effective tax rate 37.3% 38.1%  41.2%

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are composed of  
the following: 
 
December 31,  2010 2009

Deferred taxes, current:    
 Assets:    
  Accounts receivable reserves  $       970 $1,580
  Accrued liabilities  4,006 3,721
  Deferred compensation obligation  317 378
  Other  —  19

   Deferred tax assets, current  5,293 5,698

 Liabilities:    
  Prepaid expenses  (599) (748)

   Deferred tax asset, net—current  4,694 4,950

Deferred taxes, non-current:    
 Assets:    
  Deferred compensation obligation  7,606 7,814
  Stock-based compensation  7,365 3,911
  Pension and postretirement benefit plans 8,632 5,349
  Other  1,694 1,352

   Deferred tax assets, non-current  25,297 18,426
 
 Liabilities:    
  Fixed assets and capitalized software  (4,272) (2,790)
  Goodwill and intangible assets  (10,889) (6,729)

    Deferred tax liabilities, non-current  (15,161) (9,519)
  Valuation allowance  (94) — 

   Deferred tax asset, net—non-current  10,042 8,907

Net deferred tax asset  $ 14,736 $13,857

At December 31, 2011, Kforce has approximately $15,065 of state 
tax net operating losses (“NOLs”) which will be carried forward to 
be offset against future state taxable income. The state tax NOLs 
expire in varying amounts through 2031. 

In evaluating the realizability of Kforce’s deferred tax assets, 
management assesses whether it is more likely than not that 
some portion, or all, of the deferred tax assets, will be realized. 
Management considers, among other things, the ability to generate 
future taxable income (including reversals of deferred tax liabilities) 
during the periods in which the related temporary differences will 
become deductible. 

Kforce is periodically subject to U.S. Internal Revenue Service 
(“IRS”) audits as well as state and other local income tax audits for 
various tax years. During 2011, the IRS commenced an examination 
of Kforce’s U.S. income tax return for 2009. No material liabilities are 
expected to result from this ongoing examination. Although Kforce 
has not experienced any material liabilities in the past due to income 
tax audits, Kforce can make no assurances that this will continue. 
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uncertain income Tax positions 
An uncertain income tax position taken on the income tax return 

must be recognized in the consolidated financial statements at the 
largest amount that is more likely than not to be sustained upon 
audit by the relevant taxing authority. An uncertain income tax 
position will not be recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of 
being sustained. 

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of 
unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2011, 
2010 and 2009 is as follows: 

     2011 2010 2009

Beginning balance $191 $238 $200
Additions for tax positions  
 of prior years 10 53 80
Additions for tax positions  
 of current year 38 —  —
Reductions for tax positions  
 of prior years—lapse of  
 applicable statutes (82) (76) (42)
Settlements    (85)    (24) — 

Ending balance $  72 $191 $238

The entire amount of these unrecognized tax benefits as of 
December 31, 2011, if recognized, would not significantly impact 
the effective tax rate. Kforce does not expect any significant changes 
to its uncertain tax positions in the next 12 months. 

Kforce and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. 
federal jurisdiction and various states. Global files income tax 
returns in the Philippines. With a few exceptions, Kforce is no longer 
subject to federal, state, local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations 
by tax authorities for years before 2007. 

4. other aSSetS 
 
December 31, 2011 2010

Cash surrender value of life  
 insurance policies, net of policy  
 loans of $612 and $3,924, respectively $21,804 $20,096
Capitalized software, net of amortization 9,863 11,982
Deferred loan costs, net of amortization 436 126
Other non-current assets 451 737

      $32,554 $32,941

 
The cash surrender value of Company-owned life insurance 

policies relates to policies maintained by Kforce on certain 
participants in its deferred compensation plan, which could be used 
to fund the related obligations (Note 10). 

Kforce capitalized software purchases as well as direct costs 
associated with software developed for internal use of approximately 
$3,598 and $6,258 during 2011 and 2010, respectively. Accumulated 
amortization of capitalized software was $27,679 and $22,080 as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Amortization expense 
of capitalized software during the years ended December 31, 2011, 
2010 and 2009 was $5,716, $4,925 and $4,426, respectively. 

5. goodwill and other intangible aSSetS 

Goodwill
As of December 31, 2011, Kforce performed a review of its reporting units and concluded that KCR and HIM no longer meet the aggregation 

criteria due to continued economic dissimilarities in revenue and gross profit trends, thus, should be considered individual reporting units for 
purposes of the annual impairment test. Prior to December 31, 2011, KCR and HIM were aggregated into a single reporting unit, Health and 
Life Sciences (“HLS”). As a result of the disaggregation of KCR and HIM, Kforce calculated fair value for each reporting unit, excluding goodwill, 
to allocate the $10,397 of goodwill associated with the previously aggregated HLS reporting unit. The resulting allocation of goodwill to KCR 
and HIM was $5,474 and $4,923, respectively. The assumptions utilized to calculate the fair values of the KCR and HIM reporting units were 
similar in nature to the assumptions used to test for goodwill impairment as of December 31, 2011, which are discussed below. 

The following table contains a disclosure of changes in the carrying amount of goodwill in total and for each reporting unit for the two 
years ended December 31, 2011: 

        Health  
  Finance and Clinical Information Health and Government
  Technology Accounting Research Management Life Sciences Solutions Total 

Balance as of January 1, 2010 $16,898 $8,006 $       —  $       —  $  10,397 $102,611 $137,912
Adjustment 136 —  —  —  —  30 166

Balance as of December 31, 2010 $17,034 $8,006 $       —  $       —  $  10,397 $102,641 $138,078
Allocation of goodwill (a) — —  5,474  4,923  (10,397)  — —

Balance as of december 31, 2011 $17,034 $8,006 $5,474 $4,923 $           —  $102,641 $138,078

 
(a)  The allocation of goodwill to the KCR and HIM reporting units is due to the disaggregation of the HLS reporting unit in 2011. See Note 14—“Reportable Segments” for  

additional discussion.
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The following table contains a disclosure of the gross amount and accumulated impairment losses of goodwill for Tech and FA reporting 
units for the two years ended December 31, 2011:

  Technology Finance and Accounting

   Accumulated   Accumulated
  Gross Impairment Carrying Gross Impairment Carrying
  Amount Losses Value Amount Losses Value

Balance as of January 1, 2010 $156,255 $(139,357) $16,898 $19,766 $(11,760) $8,006
Balance as of December 31, 2010 $156,391 $(139,357) $17,034 $19,766 $(11,760) $8,006
Balance as of december 31, 2011 $156,391 $(139,357) $17,034 $19,766 $(11,760) $8,006

There have been no impairment charges recognized for the KCR, HIM or GS reporting units. As a result, the carrying values of goodwill for 
each of the two years ended December 31, 2011 represents the gross amount of goodwill attributable to these reporting units. 

Kforce performed its annual impairment assessment of the 
carrying value of goodwill as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. 
We compared the carrying value of each of our reporting units to 
their estimated fair value. For the December 31, 2011 impairment 
assessment, Kforce estimated the fair value of the GS, KCR and HIM 
reporting units based on a weighting of both the income approach 
and the two market approaches: (i) the guideline company method 
and (ii) guideline transaction method. For the GS analysis as of 
December 31, 2011, the guideline transaction method was not 
weighted in determining fair value as we believed it would not yield 
a reliable determination of fair value due to the lack of publicly-
available transactions in the marketplace that are reasonably 
comparable to GS. For the KCR and HIM analyses, we utilized all 
approaches in estimating fair value. The fair value of our Tech and 
FA reporting units were carried forward from prior year impairment 
assessments as all applicable fair value rollforward criteria were 
met as of December 31, 2011. 

Discounted cash flows, which serve as the primary basis for 
the income approach, were based on discrete financial forecasts 
which were developed by management for planning purposes and 
were consistent with those distributed within Kforce. Cash flows 
beyond the discrete forecast period of five years were estimated 
using a terminal value calculation, which incorporated historical 
and forecasted financial trends and also considered long-term 
earnings growth rates for publicly-traded peer companies, as well 
as the risk-free rate of return. A range of terminal value growth 
rates of 1.0% to 3.0% was used. To calculate fair value for each of 
the reporting units, the income approach valuation included the 
cash flow discount rate, representing the reporting unit’s weighted 
average cost of capital, of 16.0% for GS and 14.5% for both KCR and 
HIM. The difference in the weighted average cost of capital for GS 
was primarily due to the incremental forecast risk that we believe 
exists for this reporting unit.

As mentioned above, the market approaches consist of the (i) 
guideline company method and (ii) guideline transaction method. 
The guideline company method applied pricing multiples derived 
from publicly-traded guideline companies that are comparable to 

the respective reporting unit to determine its value. The guideline 
transaction method (which was not weighted, as mentioned above, 
for our GS reporting unit) applied pricing multiples derived from 
recently completed acquisitions that we believe are reasonably 
comparable to the KCR and HIM reporting units to determine fair 
value. To calculate fair values under the guideline company method, 
Kforce utilized enterprise value/revenue multiples ranging from 
0.80 to 0.90 for GS, 0.20 to 0.25 for KCR and 0.28 to 0.35 for HIM and 
enterprise value/EBITDA multiples ranging from 6.0 to 8.0 for GS, 
5.5 to 6.2 for KCR and 5.9 to 6.5 for HIM. Additionally, the fair value 
under the guideline company method included a control premium 
ranging from 10% to 40%, which was determined based on a review 
of comparative market transactions. To calculate fair values under 
the guideline transaction method for the KCR and HIM reporting 
units, Kforce utilized an enterprise value/revenue multiple of 0.26 
for KCR and 0.35 for HIM and an enterprise value/EBITDA multiple 
of 6.5 for KCR and HIM. Kforce assigned a weighting to each of the 
enterprise value ratios based on the ratio that is predominately used 
in the marketplace to value that type of business. Publicly available 
information regarding the market capitalization of Kforce was also 
considered in assessing the reasonableness of the cumulative fair 
values of our reporting units.

No goodwill impairment charges resulted from the December 31, 
2011 or 2010 annual impairment analyses. As of December 31, 2011, 
Kforce determined that the fair value of our Tech, FA, KCR, HIM and GS 
reporting units exceeded their carrying amounts by 52%, 81%, 68%, 
60% and 9%, respectively. Because no indicators of impairment existed 
for the reporting units, the second step of the test to determine the 
implied fair value of goodwill for each reporting unit was not required. 

Although the 2011 goodwill impairment analysis for GS utilized 
assumptions we believe to be reasonable and financial forecasts 
we believe to be achievable, we performed a sensitivity analysis by 
independently modifying the discount rate, long-term growth rate, 
forecasted operating results as well as the weighting between the 
income approach and guideline company method; none of which 
indicated impairment.
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other intangible assets 
During the three months ended June 30, 2009, Kforce performed 

a review of a trade name that was acquired in the 2004 acquisition 
of Hall, Kinion and Associates, Inc. which indicated a lack of market 
recognition and penetration of this trade name. We determined 
that the trade name’s carrying value was no longer recoverable. 
The fair value of the trade name was based on a relief-from-royalty 
model, which is considered a Level 3 input by Kforce. As a result, 
an impairment charge of $870 was recognized. The impairment 
charge is classified in selling, general and administrative expenses 
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and 
comprehensive income. There were no impairment charges recorded 
during the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, intangible assets, net in the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets primarily consist of 
customer relationships and trademarks. Indefinite-lived intangible 
assets, which consist of trade names and trademarks, amounted to 
$2,240 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. Customer relationships, 
customer contracts and other definite-lived intangibles, net of 
accumulated amortization, amounted to $4,395 and $5,547 as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

Amortization expense on intangible assets for each of the three 
years ended December 31, 2011 was $1,152, $2,128 and $1,996, 
respectively. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, accumulated 
amortization of intangible assets was $23,533 and $22,903, 
respectively. Amortization expense for 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 and 
2016 is expected to be $901, $752, $634, $634 and $457, respectively.

6. accountS Payable and other accrued liabilitieS 
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities consisted of  

the following: 
 

December 31, 2011  2010 

Accounts payable $15,242 $18,150
Accrued liabilities 11,072 12,452

      $26,314 $30,602

Kforce utilizes a major procurement card provider to pay certain 
of its corporate trade payables. The balance owed to this provider for 
these transactions as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $622 and 
$335, respectively, and has been included in accounts payable and 
other accrued liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets. The cash flows associated with these transactions have been 
presented as a financing activity in the accompanying consolidated 
statement of cash flows. 

 
7. accrued Payroll coStS 

Accrued payroll costs consisted of the following: 
 
December 31, 2011  2010 

Payroll and benefits $40,164 $38,688
Payroll taxes 9,995 10,549
Health insurance liabilities 3,489 3,548
Workers’ compensation liabilities 1,503 1,676

      $55,151 $54,461

8. credit facility 
On September 20, 2011, Kforce entered into a Third Amended and 

Restated Credit Agreement, with a syndicate led by Bank of America, 
N.A. The maximum borrowings available to Kforce under the Credit 
Facility are limited to: (a) a revolving credit facility of up to $100 
million (the “Revolving Loan Amount”) and (b) a $15 million sub-
limit included in the Credit Facility for letters of credit. 

Borrowing availability under the Credit Facility is limited to 85% 
of the net amount of eligible accounts receivable, plus 80% of the 
net amount of eligible unbilled accounts receivable, plus 80% of the 
net amount of eligible employee placement accounts, minus certain 
minimum availability reserves. Outstanding borrowings under the 
Revolving Loan Amount bear interest at a rate of (a) LIBOR plus 
1.25% or (b) the higher of: (i) the prime rate, (ii) the federal funds 
rate plus 0.50% or (iii) LIBOR plus 1.00%; plus 0.25%. Letters of credit 
issued under the Credit Facility require Kforce to pay a fronting fee 
equal to 0.125% of the amount of each letter of credit issued plus, 
a per annum fee equal to the applicable margin for LIBOR loans 
based on the total letters of credit outstanding. To the extent that 
Kforce has unused availability under the Credit Facility, an unused 
line fee is required to be paid equal to the applicable margin times 
the amount by which the maximum revolver amount exceeded the 
sum of the average daily outstanding amount of the revolving loans 
and the average daily undrawn face amount of outstanding letters 
of credit during the immediate preceding month. Borrowings under 
the Credit Facility are secured by substantially all of the assets of 
Kforce, excluding the real estate located at the Kforce’s corporate 
headquarters in Tampa, Florida. Under the Credit Facility, Kforce is 
subject to certain affirmative and negative covenants including (but 
not limited to) the maintenance of a fixed charge coverage ratio of 
at least 1.00 to 1.00 if the Firm’s availability under the Credit Facility 
is less than the greater of (i) 10% of the aggregate amount of the 
commitment of all of the lenders under the Credit Facility and (ii) 
$11,000. As of December 31, 2011, Kforce had availability under 
the Credit Facility of $35,892; therefore, the minimum fixed charge 
coverage ratio was not applicable. Kforce believes that it will be able 
to maintain the minimum availability requirement; however, in 
the event that Kforce is unable to do so, Kforce could fail the fixed 
charge coverage ratio, which would constitute an event of default. 
Kforce believes the likelihood of default is remote. The Credit Facility 
expires September 20, 2016.

9. other long-term liabilitieS 
Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following: 

 
December 31, 2011  2010 

Deferred compensation plan (Note 10) $18,590 $19,711
Supplemental executive  
 retirement plan (Note 10) 17,230 12,046
Supplemental executive  
 retirement health plan (Note 10) 3,764 895
Other   2,674 2,149

      $42,258 $34,801
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10. emPloyee benefit PlanS 

alternative long-Term incentive 
On January 2, 2009, Kforce granted to certain executive officers 

an alternative long-term incentive (“ALTI”), which was initially 
measured over three tranches having periods of 12, 24 and 36 
months, respectively. The terms specified that ultimate annual 
payouts could have been based on the performance of Kforce’s 
common stock each year relative to its peer group, as defined by the 
Compensation Committee, or based upon the achievement of other 
market conditions contained in the terms of the award. 

During the quarter ended September 30, 2009, Kforce’s stock price 
exceeded the stock price at the date of grant by 50% for the tenth 
trading day. As a result of this condition being met, the ultimate 
annual payout for each tranche became 150% of the target. The fair 
value of each tranche was being recognized over the requisite service 
period. On December 28, 2010, the Compensation Committee of the 
Board of Directors approved the accelerated vesting of the third 
tranche of the ALTI, which resulted in the recognition of $449 of 
compensation expense during the quarter ended December 31, 
2010. Kforce recognized total compensation expense related to the 
ALTI of $0, $1,563 and $2,467 for the years ended December 31, 
2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. As of December 31, 2010, $2,685 
was classified in other current liabilities, which was paid in full 
during January 2011. 

401(k) Savings plans 
Kforce has a qualified defined contribution 401(k) Retirement 

Savings Plan (the “Kforce 401(k) Plan”) covering substantially all 
Kforce Inc. employees. Assets of the Kforce 401(k) Plan are held in 
trust for the sole benefit of employees and/or their beneficiaries. 
On October 2, 2006, Kforce created the Kforce Government Practice 
Plan, a qualified defined contribution 401(k) retirement savings plan 
(the “Government 401(k) Plan”), which covers all eligible employees 
of the GS segment. Assets of the Government 401(k) Plan are held 
in trust for the sole benefit of employees and/or their beneficiaries. 
Employer matching contributions are discretionary and are funded 
annually as approved by the Board of Directors.

Kforce accrued matching contributions of $1,701 and $1,924 
for the above plans’ years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. The Kforce 401(k) Plan and Government 401(k) Plan 
held a combined 363 and 344 shares of Kforce’s common stock as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 

employee Stock purchase plan 
Kforce’s employee stock purchase plan allows all eligible 

employees to purchase Kforce’s common stock at a 5% discount from 
its market price at the end of a rolling three-month offering period. 
Kforce issued 56 shares of common stock at average purchase prices 
of $12.64 per share during the year ended December 31, 2011. 
No shares were issued during the year ended December 31, 2010. 
Kforce issued 81 shares of common stock at average purchase prices 
of $7.21 per share during the year ended December 31, 2009. All 
shares purchased under the employee stock purchase plan were 
settled using Kforce’s treasury stock. 

deferred Compensation plan 
Kforce has a Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan 

(the “Kforce NQDC Plan”) and a Kforce Non-Qualified Deferred 
Compensation Government Practice Plan (the “KGS NQDC Plan”), 
pursuant to which eligible management and highly compensated 
key employees, as defined by IRS regulations, may elect to defer 
all or part of their compensation to later years. These amounts are 
classified in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities if payable 
within the next year or as other long-term liabilities if payable after 
the next year, upon retirement or termination of employment. At 
December 31, 2011 and 2010, amounts included in accounts payable 
and other accrued liabilities related to the deferred compensation 
plan totaled $847 and $967, respectively. Amounts included in other 
long-term liabilities related to the deferred compensation plan 
totaled $18,590 and $19,711 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. Kforce has insured the lives of certain participants 
in the deferred compensation plan to assist in the funding of the 
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the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, net periodic 
benefit cost was $189, $153 and $128, respectively. 

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the projected benefit 
obligation associated with our foreign defined benefit pension plan 
was $1,112 and $694, respectively, which is classified in other long-
term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Supplemental executive retirement plan 
Kforce maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 

(the “SERP”) for the benefit of certain Named Executive Officers 
(“NEOs”). The primary goals of the SERP are to create an additional 
wealth accumulation opportunity, restore lost qualified pension 
benefits due to government limitations and retain our NEOs. The 
SERP is a non-qualified benefit plan and does not include elective 
deferrals of covered executive officers’ compensation. 

Normal retirement age under the SERP is defined as age 65; 
however, certain conditions allow for early retirement as early 
as age 55 or upon a change in control. Vesting under the plan is 
defined as 100% upon a participant’s attainment of age 55 and 10 
years of service and 0% prior to a participant’s attainment of age 55 
and 10 years of service. Full vesting also occurs if a participant with 
five years or more of service is involuntarily terminated by Kforce 
without cause or upon death, disability or a change in control. The 
SERP is funded entirely by Kforce, and benefits are taxable to the 
executive officer upon receipt and deductible by Kforce when paid. 
Benefits payable under the SERP upon the occurrence of a qualifying 
distribution event, as defined, are targeted at 45% of the covered 
executive officers’ average salary and bonus, as defined, from the 
three years in which the executive officer earned the highest salary 
and bonus during the last 10 years of employment, which is subject 
to adjustment for retirement prior to the normal retirement age and 
the participant’s vesting percentage. The benefits under the SERP 
are reduced for a participant that has not reached age 62 with 10 
years of service or age 55 with 25 years of service with a percentage 
reduction up to the normal retirement age. 

Benefits under the SERP are normally paid based on the lump sum 
present value but may be paid over the life of the covered executive 
officer or 10-year annuity, as elected by the covered executive officer 
upon commencement of participation in the SERP. None of the 
benefits earned pursuant to the SERP are attributable to services 
provided prior to the effective date of the plan. For purposes of the 
measurement of the benefit obligation as of December 31, 2011, 
Kforce has assumed that all participants will elect to take the lump 
sum present value option. 

Actuarial Assumptions 
The following represents the actuarial assumptions used to 

determine the actuarial present value of projected benefit 
obligations at: 
 
December 31, 2011  2010 

Discount rate 3.25% 4.00%
Expected long-term rate of  
 return on plan assets —  — 
Rate of future compensation increase 4.00% 4.00%

The following represents the weighted average actuarial 
assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the 
years ended: 
 
December 31, 2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 4.00% 4.75% 6.00%
Expected long-term rate of 
 return on plan assets —  —  — 
Rate of future compensation increase 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

The discount rate was determined using the Moody’s Aa long-term 
corporate bond yield as of the measurement date with a maturity 
commensurate with the expected payout of the SERP obligation. 
This rate is also compared against the Citigroup Pension Discount 
Curve and Liability Index to ensure the rate used is reasonable and 
may be adjusted accordingly. This index is widely used by companies 
throughout the United States and is considered to be one of the 
preferred standards for establishing a discount rate. 

Due to the SERP being unfunded as of December 31, 2011 and 
2010, it is not necessary for Kforce to determine the expected long-
term rate of return on plan assets. Once funded, Kforce will determine 
the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets by determining 
the composition of the asset portfolio, the historical long-term 
investment performance and the current market conditions. The 
assumed rate of future compensation increases is based on a 
combination of factors, including the historical compensation 
increases for its NEOs and future target compensation levels for its 
NEOs taking into account the NEOs’ assumed retirement date. 

The periodic benefit cost is based on actuarial assumptions that 
are reviewed on an annual basis; however, Kforce monitors these 
assumptions on a periodic basis to ensure that they accurately reflect 
current expectations of the cost of providing retirement benefits. 

Net Periodic Benefit Cost 
The following represents the components of net periodic benefit 

cost for the years ended: 

December 31, 2011 2010 2009

Service cost $3,248 $3,025 $2,295
Interest cost 482 395 257
Amortization of actuarial loss   76   82   — 
Curtailment gain   —    —  (279)

Net periodic benefit cost $3,806 $3,502 $2,273
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Changes in Benefit Obligation 
The following represents the changes in the benefit obligation for 

the years ended: 
 
December 31,  2011 2010

Projected benefit obligation, beginning $12,046 $8,316
Service cost  3,248 3,025
Interest cost 482 395
Actuarial experience and changes in  
 actuarial assumptions 1,454 310

Projected benefit obligation, ending $17,230 $12,046

The projected benefit obligation above is classified in other long-
term liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
The present value of the accumulated benefit obligation as of 
December 31, 2011 and 2010 is $14,786 and $10,398, respectively. 

Contributions 
There is no requirement for Kforce to fund the SERP and, as a 

result, no contributions have been made to the SERP through the 
year ended December 31, 2011. Kforce does not currently anticipate 
funding the SERP during the year ending December 31, 2012. 

Estimated Future Benefit Payments 
Benefit payments by the SERP, which reflect the anticipated future 

service of participants, are expected to be paid (undiscounted)  
as follows: 

Projected Annual
Benefit Payments

2012    $        — 
2013    10,994 
2014    — 
2015    — 
2016    — 
2017-2021  18,335
Thereafter  15,400
 
Supplemental executive retirement health plan 

Kforce maintains a Supplemental Executive Retirement Health 
Plan (“SERHP”) to provide postretirement health and welfare benefits 
to certain executives. The vesting and eligibility requirements mirror 
that of the SERP, and no advance funding is required by Kforce or the 
participants. Consistent with the SERP, none of the benefits earned are 
attributable to services provided prior to the effective date of the plan. 

Actuarial Assumptions 
The following represents the actuarial assumptions used to 

determine the present value of the postretirement benefit 
obligation at: 
 
December 31, 2011 2010

Discount rate 4.00% 5.25%
Expected long-term rate  
 of return on plan assets —  — 

The following represents the actuarial assumptions used to 
determine the net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the  
years ended: 

December 31, 2011 2010 2009

Discount rate 5.25% 5.50% 5.50%
Expected long-term rate  
 of return on plan assets —  —  —
 

The discount rate was determined using the Moody’s Aa long-term 
corporate bond yield as of the measurement date with a maturity 
commensurate with the expected payout of the SERP obligation. 
This rate is compared against the Citigroup Pension Discount Curve 
and Liability Index to ensure the rate used is reasonable. 

Due to the SERHP being unfunded as of December 31, 2011 
and 2010, it is not necessary for Kforce to determine the expected 
long-term rate of return on plan assets. Once funded, Kforce will 
determine the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets by 
determining the composition of the asset portfolio, the historical 
long-term investment performance and current market conditions. 

The following represents the assumed health care cost trend 
rates used to determine the postretirement benefit obligations for 
the years ended: 

December 31,  2011 2010

Health care cost trend rate  
 assumed for next year  8.00%  8.50%
Rate to which the cost trend rate  
 is assumed to decline to  
 (ultimate trend rate)  5.00% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the  
 ultimate trend rate  2018 2017

Assumed health care cost trend rates can have a significant effect on 
the amounts reported for the SERHP. A one percent change in assumed 
health care cost trend rates would have the following effects: 
 
  One Percentage Point

       Increase Decrease

Effect of total of service and interest cost $   62 $  (77)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $639 $(806)

Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost 
The following represents the components of net periodic 

postretirement benefit cost for the years ended: 
 
December 31, 2011 2010 2009

Service cost $324 $310 $ 149
Interest cost 47 26 35
Amortization of actuarial loss 6 3 —
Gain from change in attribution period — — (417)
Curtailment gain — — (180)

Net periodic benefit (gain) cost $377 $339 $(413)
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Changes in Postretirement Benefit Obligation 
The following represents the changes in the postretirement 

benefit obligation for the years ended: 
 
December 31,  2011 2010

Accumulated postretirement  
 benefit obligation, beginning  $    895 $411
  Service cost  324 310
  Interest cost  47 26
  Actuarial experience and 
   changes in actuarial assumptions  2,498 148

Accumulated postretirement benefit  
 obligation, ending  $3,764 $895

     
The increase in the accumulated postretirement benefit 

obligation as a result of the December 31, 2011 measurement was 
primarily a result of a significant decrease in the discount rate, a 
significant increase in 2012 premiums for the underlying health 
insurance plan (beyond the actuarially determined estimates) 
and an excise tax on the excess benefit that is estimated to be 
provided to plan participants stemming from the Patient Protection 
and Affordable Care Act. The accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation above has been classified in other long-term liabilities in 
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

Estimated Future Benefit Payments 
Benefit payments by the SERHP, which reflect anticipated future 

service of the participants, are expected to be paid (undiscounted) 
as follows: 
 

Projected Annual
Benefit Payments 

2012    $        — 
2013    28
2014     66
2015    72
2016    78
2017-2021  875
Thereafter  20,632

Pretax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive 
income as of December 31, 2011 that have not yet been recognized 
as components of net periodic benefit cost for all of Kforce’s defined 
benefit pension and postretirement plans, including an insignificant 
foreign defined benefit plan, consist entirely of actuarial gains 
and losses arising from the actuarial experience of the plans and 
changes in actuarial assumptions, as follows: 
 
      Pensions   Postretirement 

Net pretax actuarial loss $3,921 $2,644

     
The estimated portion of the net actuarial loss above that is 

expected to be recognized as a component of net periodic benefit 
cost in the year ending December 31, 2012 is shown below: 
 
      Pensions   Postretirement 

Recognized net actuarial loss $189 $272

11. fair Value meaSurementS 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an 

asset or paid to transfer a liability (i.e., an exit price) in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
It establishes a fair value hierarchy and a framework which requires 
categorizing assets and liabilities into one of three levels based on 
the assumptions (inputs) used in valuing the asset or liability. Level 1  
provides the most reliable measure of fair value, while Level 3  
generally requires significant management judgment. Level 1 
inputs are unadjusted, quoted market prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are observable inputs 
other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices 
for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for 
identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets. Level 3 inputs include 
unobservable inputs that are supported by little, infrequent, or no 
market activity and reflect management’s own assumptions about 
inputs used in pricing the asset or liability. The Company uses the 
following valuation techniques to measure fair value.

Certain assets, in specific circumstances, are measured at fair value 
on a non-recurring basis utilizing Level 3 inputs such as goodwill, 
other intangible assets and other long-lived assets. For these assets, 
measurement at fair value in periods subsequent to their initial 
recognition would be applicable if one or more of these assets were 
determined to be impaired. No impairment was recognized on these 
assets during the year ended December 31, 2011.

12. Stock incentiVe PlanS 
On June 20, 2006, the shareholders approved the 2006 Stock 

Incentive Plan. The aggregate number of shares of common 
stock that would have been subject to awards under the 2006 
Stock Incentive Plan, subject to adjustment upon a change in 
capitalization, was 3,000. On June 16, 2009, the shareholders 
approved an amendment to the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan to 
increase the number of authorized awards that may be issued 
under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan from 3,000 to 5,100. On June 
25, 2010, the shareholders approved an amendment to the 2006 
Stock Incentive Plan to increase the number of authorized awards 
that may be issued under the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan from 5,100 
to 7,850. 

The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan allows for the issuance of stock 
options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), PARS and RS, subject to 
share availability. Vesting of equity instruments issued under the 
2006 Stock Incentive Plan is determined on a grant-by-grant basis. 
Options expire at the end of 10 years from the date of grant, and 
Kforce issues new shares upon exercise of options. The 2006 Stock 
Incentive Plan terminates on April 28, 2016. 

The Employee Incentive Stock Option Plan and Non-Employee 
Director Stock Option Plan expired in 2005.
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Stock options 
The following table presents the activity under each of the stock incentive plans discussed above for the three years ended December 31, 2011: 
 

        Non-   Weighted Total
      Employee Employee   Average Intrinsic
      Incentive Director Stock  Exercise Value of
      Stock Option Stock Option Incentive  Price Per Options
      Plan Plan Plan Total Share Exercised

Outstanding as of December 31, 2008 2,933 61 108 3,102 $10.26   
Exercised  (615) —  —  (615) $   9.68  $1,332
Forfeited/Cancelled (157) (30) —  (187) $10.27   

Outstanding as of December 31, 2009 2,161 31 108 2,300 $10.41   
Exercised  (976) (31) (10) (1,017) $   8.50  $7,195
Forfeited/Cancelled (598) —  —  (598) $ 14.74   

Outstanding as of December 31, 2010 587 —  98 685 $   9.47   
Exercised  (349) —  —  (349) $   8.20  $2,931
Forfeited/Cancelled (12) —  —  (12) $10.75   

outstanding and exercisable  
 as of december 31, 2011 226 —  98 324 $10.79   
 

The following table summarizes information about employee and director stock options under all of the plans mentioned above as of 
December 31, 2011: 
 
     Outstanding and Exercisable

      Weighted
      Average Weighted
     Number of Remaining Average Total
     Awards Contractual Exercise Intrinsic
Range of Exercise Prices (#) Term (Yrs) Price ($) Value 

$0.00 - $  4.37 — — $       — $   —
$4.38 - $  8.96 39 2.34 $   8.37 154
$9.36 - $14.45 285 3.80 $11.12 423

      324 3.63 $10.79 $577

         
No compensation expense was recorded during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 as a result of the grant date fair value having 

been fully amortized as of December 31, 2009. During the year ended December 31, 2009, Kforce recognized compensation expense of $127. 

Stock appreciation rights 
Although no such requirement exists, SARs are generally granted (if any) on the first trading day of each year to certain Kforce executives based 

on the extent by which annual long-term incentive performance goals, which are established by Kforce’s Compensation Committee during the 
first 90 days of the year of performance, are certified by the Compensation Committee as having been met. SARs generally cliff vest three years 
from the date of issuance; however, vesting is accelerated if Kforce’s stock price exceeds the stock price at the date of grant by 30% for a period of 
10 trading days, or if the Compensation Committee determines that the criteria for acceleration are satisfied. There were no SARs granted during 
the three years ended December 31, 2011. 

The following table presents the activity for the three years ended December 31, 2011: 
 
      Weighted Average Total Intrinsic
      Exercise Price Value of SARs
     Number of SARs Per SAR Exercised

Outstanding as of December 31, 2008 830 $11.04 
Forfeited/Cancelled (28) $10.32 

Outstanding as of December 31, 2009 802 $11.07 
Exercised (633) $11.27  $3,241

Outstanding as of December 31, 2010 169 $10.32 
Exercised (169) $10.32  $1,278
outstanding and exercisable as of december 31, 2011 —  $10.32 
 

No compensation expense was recognized during the three years ended December 31, 2011 due to the grant date fair value being fully 
amortized as of December 31, 2008. 
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performance accelerated restricted Stock 
PARS are periodically granted to certain Kforce executives and are 

generally based on the extent by which annual long-term incentive 
performance goals, which are established by Kforce’s Compensation 
Committee during the first 90 days of the year of performance, are 
certified by the Compensation Committee as having been met. 
PARS granted during 2011 will cliff vest three years from the grant 
date. However, vesting is accelerated if Kforce’s closing stock price 
exceeds the stock price at the date of grant by a pre-established 
percentage (which has historically ranged from 40 - 50%) for a period 
of 10 trading days, or if the Compensation Committee determines 
that the criteria for acceleration are satisfied. 

Vesting was accelerated for the PARS granted during the year 
ended December 31, 2009 as Kforce’s stock price exceeded the stock 
price at the date of grant by 50% for the tenth trading day during 

the quarter ended September 30, 2009. As a result, all unrecognized 
compensation expense associated with these awards was accelerated. 
Kforce recognized total compensation expense related to these PARS 
of $4,506 during the year ended December 31, 2009.

Certain PARS granted during 2011 are subject to forfeiture based 
upon the level of attainment of performance conditions established 
by the Compensation Committee. Vesting for these PARS may 
not occur until the Compensation Committee of the Board has 
certified the level of attainment of the performance conditions. In 
February 2012, the Compensation Committee of the Board certified 
2011 performance measures, which resulted in the forfeiture 
of approximately 393 PARS and was consistent with estimated 
forfeitures during 2011 that was used for compensation expense 
recognition purposes.

PARS contain voting rights and are included in the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding. PARS granted subsequent 
to September 30, 2009 contain a non-forfeitable right to dividends or dividend equivalents in the form of additional shares of restricted 
stock containing the same vesting provisions as the underlying award. The following table presents the activity for the three years ended  
December 31, 2011: 

      Weighted Average Total Intrinsic
      Grant Date Value of PARS
     Number of PARS Fair Value Vested

Outstanding as of December 31, 2008 297 $13.30 
Granted  591 $   7.62 
Vested   (591) $   7.62  $ 6,582
Forfeited  (20) $13.21 
Outstanding as of December 31, 2009 277 $13.31 
Granted  1,228 $12.79 
Vested   (69) $13.31  $    914
Forfeited  — $       — 
Outstanding as of December 31, 2010 1,436 $12.87 
Granted  1,569 $16.37 
Vested    (69) $13.31  $1,024
Forfeited  — $       — 

outstanding as of december 31, 2011 2,936 $14.73 

 
The fair market value of PARS is determined based on the closing stock price of Kforce’s common stock at the date of grant, and is amortized 

on a straight-line basis over the derived service period, which is determined using a lattice model. 
During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, Kforce recorded compensation expense of approximately $10,701, $4,931 

and $5,481, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, there was $20,158 of unrecognized compensation expense related to PARS, which will be 
recognized over a weighted average remaining period of 1.89 years. 
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restricted Stock 
RS is periodically granted to certain Kforce executives and Kforce’s Board and, for Kforce’s executives, is generally based on the extent by 

which annual long-term incentive performance goals, which are established by Kforce’s Compensation Committee during the first 90 days of 
the year of performance, are certified by the Compensation Committee as having been met. RS granted during the years ended December 31,  
2011, 2010 and 2009 had vesting terms ranging from two to six years. 

RS contain voting rights and are included in the number of shares of common stock issued and outstanding. RS granted subsequent to September 30,  
2009 contain a non-forfeitable right to dividends or dividend equivalents in the form of additional shares of restricted stock containing the same 
vesting provisions as the underlying award. The following table presents the activity for the three years ended December 31, 2011: 

 
      Weighted Average Total Intrinsic
      Grant Date Value of RS
     Number of RS Fair Value Vested

Outstanding as of December 31, 2008 578 $   8.96 
Granted  35 $   9.74 
Vested   (209) $   8.46  $1,619
Forfeited  (59) $   9.93 

Outstanding as of December 31, 2009 345 $   9.17 
Granted  199 $12.77 
Vested   (82) $   9.36  $1,093
Forfeited  — $       — 

Outstanding as of December 31, 2010 462 $10.68 
Granted  35 $13.78 
Vested   (99) $10.09  $1,568
Forfeited  — $       — 

outstanding as of december 31, 2011 398 $11.10 

The fair market value of restricted stock is determined based on the closing stock price of Kforce’s common stock at the date of grant, and 
is amortized on a straight-line basis over the service period. 

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, Kforce recorded compensation expense of approximately $1,275, $1,105 and 
$763, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, there was $2,809 of unrecognized compensation expense related to RS, which will be recognized 
over a weighted average remaining period of 2.85 years. 

13. commitmentS and contingencieS 

lease Commitments 
Kforce leases space and operating assets under operating and capital leases expiring at various dates, with some leases cancelable upon 30 

to 90 days notice. The leases require Kforce to pay taxes, insurance and maintenance costs, in addition to rental payments. 
Future minimum lease payments, inclusive of accelerated lease payments, under non-cancelable capital and operating leases are 

summarized as follows: 
 

   2012   2013   2014   2015   2016   Thereafter   Total 

Capital leases              
 Present value of payments $1,563 $   862 $    455 $214 $   78  $—  $   3,172
 Interest 243 173 67 34 13  —  530

Capital lease payments $1,806 $1,035 $    522 $248 $   91  $—  $   3,702

Operating leases              
 Facilities $5,942 $3,957 $1,769 $109 $   19 $36 $11,832
 Furniture and equipment 16 —  —  —  —  —  16

Total operating leases $5,958 $3,957 $1,769 $109 $   19 $36 $11,848

Total leases $7,764 $4,992 $2,291 $357 $110 $36 $15,550

               
The present value of the minimum lease payments for capital lease obligations has been classified in other current liabilities and long-term 

debt—other, according to their respective maturities. Rental expense under operating leases was $6,027, $7,684 and $9,951 for the years 
ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
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purchase Commitments 
Kforce has entered into various commitments including, among 

others, a compensation software hosting and licensing arrangement, 
contracts with resorts to host our annual employee incentive trips 
in 2012 and 2013, and a commitment for data center fees for 
certain of our information technology applications. As of December 
31, 2011, these commitments amounted to approximately $12,702 
and are expected to be paid as follows: $6,983 in 2012; $4,530 in 
2013; $1,065 in 2014 and $124 in 2015. 

letters of Credit 
Kforce provides letters of credit to certain vendors in lieu of 

cash deposits. At December 31, 2011, Kforce had letters of credit 
outstanding for workers’ compensation and other insurance coverage 
totaling $2,663, and for facility lease deposits totaling $330. 

litigation 
As disclosed in our previous filings with the SEC, Kforce was 

a defendant in a California class action lawsuit alleging 
misclassification of California Account Managers and seeking 
unspecified damages. The tentative settlement referred to in our 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 
was approved by the Court during the three months ended June 
30, 2011 in the amount of $2,526, which has been recorded within 
accounts payable and other accrued liabilities in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets. 

On June 6, 2011, the Chicago District Office of the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”) issued a 
Determination on a Charge of Discrimination, brought by an 
individual in 2006, that reasonable cause exists to believe that 
Kforce discriminated against a class of individuals because of their 
age by harassing and terminating them and discriminated against 
another class of individuals because of their age by denying them 
employment, in violation of the Age Discrimination in Employment 
Act of 1967. Kforce believes it has meritorious defenses to the 
EEOC’s allegations. The EEOC has invited Kforce to participate in 
conciliation efforts, and Kforce has accepted the invitation. At this 
stage of the matter, it is not feasible to predict the outcome or 
a range of loss, should a loss occur, and accordingly, no amounts 
have been provided in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 

In the ordinary course of its business, Kforce is from time to time 
threatened with litigation or named as a defendant in various 
lawsuits and administrative proceedings. While management does 
not expect any of these other matters to have a material adverse 
effect on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or 
cash flows, litigation is subject to certain inherent uncertainties. 
Kforce maintains liability insurance in such amounts and with such 
coverage and deductibles as management believes is reasonable. 
The principal liability risks that Kforce insures against are workers’ 
compensation, personal injury, bodily injury, property damage, 
directors’ and officers’ liability, errors and omissions, employment 

practices liability and fidelity losses. There can be no assurance that 
Kforce’s liability insurance will cover all events or that the limits of 
coverage will be sufficient to fully cover all liabilities. 

Kforce is not aware of any litigation that would reasonably be 
expected to have a material effect on its results of operations, its 
cash flows or its financial condition.

employment agreements 
Kforce has entered into employment agreements with certain 

executives that provide for minimum compensation, salary and 
continuation of certain benefits for a six-month to a three-year 
period under certain circumstances. Certain of the agreements 
also provide for a severance payment of one to three times annual 
salary and one half to three times average annual bonus if such 
an agreement is terminated without good cause by the employer 
or for good reason by the employee. These agreements contain 
certain post-employment restrictive covenants. Kforce’s liability 
at December 31, 2011 was approximately $62,368 if all of the 
employees under contract were terminated without good cause by 
the employer or the employees resigned for good reason following a 
change in control and $13,933 if all of the employees under contract 
were terminated by Kforce without good cause or the employees 
resigned for good reason in the absence of a change of control. 

Kforce has not recorded any liability related to the employment 
agreements as no events have occurred that would require payment 
under the agreements. 

14. rePortable SegmentS 
Kforce’s reportable segments are as follows: (i) Tech, (ii) FA, (iii) 

KCR, (iv) HIM and (v) GS. This determination was supported by, 
among others: the existence of segment presidents responsible 
for the operations of each segment and who also report directly 
to our chief operating decision maker, the nature of the segment’s 
operations and information presented to the Board of Directors. 

As of December 31, 2011, Kforce performed a review of its 
operating segments and concluded that KCR and HIM met the 
criteria to be considered separate operating segments, because of 
the manner in which resource allocations and decisions are made 
by Kforce’s chief operating decision maker. Furthermore, it was 
determined that KCR and HIM may not be aggregated together as 
one reportable operating segment because, among other factors, 
of the two businesses exhibiting economic dissimilarities over the 
last several quarters. In addition, the operating environments in 
which these businesses operate are expected to continue to yield 
economically dissimilar results, specifically related to revenue and 
gross profit trends. Prior to December 31, 2011, KCR and HIM were 
components within one operating segment, HLS.

Historically, and through our year ended December 31, 2011, 
Kforce has generated only sales and gross profit information on a 
segment basis. Substantially all operations and long-lived assets are 
located in the United States. 
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The following table, which has been restated for 2010 and 2009 to reflect KCR and HIM as reportable segments, provides information 
concerning the operations of our segments for the three years ended December 31: 

    Health 
    Finance and Clinical Information Government
 Technology Accounting Research Management Solutions Total

2011            
Net service revenues            
 Flexible billings $606,238 $194,359 $105,147 $68,181 $  92,449 $1,066,374
 Search fees 17,774 25,216 1,025 530 —  44,545

 Total revenue $624,012 $219,575 $106,172 $68,711 $  92,449 $1,110,919
 Gross profit $182,862 $  82,028 $  28,556 $24,476 $  28,381 $   346,303

2010            
Net service revenues            
 Flexible billings $522,220 $165,831 $103,282 $56,965 $103,132 $    951,430
 Search fees 16,346 21,365 868 798 —  39,377

 Total revenue $538,566 $187,196 $104,150 $57,763 $103,132 $    990,807
 Gross profit $159,983 $   70,811 $   28,568 $19,846 $   33,206 $    312,414

2009            
Net service revenues            
 Flexible billings $457,544 $146,186 $107,535 $55,946 $114,523 $    881,734
 Search fees 10,280 16,670 493 959 —  28,402

 Total revenue $467,824 $162,856 $108,028 $56,905 $114,523 $    910,136
 Gross profit $133,906 $   61,836 $   28,749 $20,507 $   40,981 $    285,979

15. Quarterly financial data (unaudited) 
 Three Months Ended

     March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,

2011
Net service revenues $262,388 $273,989 $288,991 $285,551
Gross profit 78,513 86,648 92,038 89,104
Net income 4,840 6,785 8,446 7,085
Earnings per share—basic $0.12 $0.17 $0.23 $0.21
Earnings per share—diluted $0.12 $0.17 $0.22  $0.20

2010        
Net service revenues $226,656 $246,137 $259,519 $258,495
Gross profit 68,145 78,395 83,465 82,409
Net income 2,708 5,144 6,444 6,338
Earnings per share—basic $0.07 $0.13 $0.16 $0.16
Earnings per share—diluted $0.07 $0.13 $0.16 $0.16

During the third and fourth quarters of 2010, Kforce reduced the allowance for doubtful accounts, fallouts and other accounts receivable 
reserves by $720 and $1,470, respectively, which were recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated 
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. The reductions resulted from evidence gathered during an ongoing analysis performed 
on various factors including recent trends, specific analysis of significant receivable balances that are past due, concentration of receivables and 
the current state of the U.S. economy. 

Additionally, during the third quarter of 2010, Kforce recorded an accrual in the amount of $1,850 as a preliminary settlement amount for an 
existing class action lawsuit alleging misclassification of California Account Managers. During the fourth quarter of 2010, an additional amount 
of $676 was recorded increasing the accrual for the settlement, which is subject to final court approval, to $2,526. The amounts recorded in the 
third and fourth quarters were both recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of 
Operations and Comprehensive Income.
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16. SuPPlemental caSh flow information 
Supplemental cash flow information is as follows for the year ended December 31: 

      2011 2010 2009 

Cash paid during the period for:      
 Income taxes, net $8,747 $13,345 $10,310
 Interest, net $    838 $      739 $      830
Non-Cash Transaction Information:      
 Tax benefit from disqualifying dispositions of stock options and restricted stock $    145 $      322 $      162
 Shares tendered in payment of exercise price of stock options and SARs $2,401 $   6,705 $   2,172
 Common Stock transactions:      
  Employee stock purchase plan $    705 $         —  $      586
 Equipment acquired under capital leases $1,166 $   2,111 $   1,088
Cash used in connection with acquisitions, net:      
 Acquisition costs $       —  $         —  $      109
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